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March 29, 2010

Honorable Mayor, City Council, and City Manager,
City of Mesquite, Texas:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (‘CAFR”) of the City of Mesquite, Texas, for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2009, is hereby submitted.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in
this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that is established for this purpose.
Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material
misstatements.

Grant Thornton LLP has issued an unqualified (“clean”) opinion on the City of Mesquite’s financial
statements for the year ending September 30, 2009. The independent auditors’ report is located at the front
of the financial section of this report.

This letter of transmittal is designed to compliment Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and
should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the
independent auditors’ report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial
statements.

The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit
Act of 1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Information related to the single audit, including the
supplemental schedule of federal awards, schedules of findings and questioned costs, and independent
auditors’ reports on internal controls and compliance are included in a separately issued single audit report.

General Information - City of Mesquite

The City is located in eastern Dallas County, with its corporate limits adjoining the corporate limits of Dallas
for a distance of about eight miles. The old downtown section of Mesquite is approximately 13 miles from
downtown Dallas. The incorporated area of Mesquite is presently 45.972 square miles.

Mesquite celebrated its 122 birthday on December 3, 2009. Although the little farming settlement had
existed as an unfranchised township since being organized at the arrival of the Texas and Pacific railroad in
1873, not until December 3, 1887, did its citizens take action to make it the first incorporated Dallas County
town outside the county seat city.



The town, little more than a frontier outpost at the time, struggled for each meager step of progress under the
leadership of dedicated early-day residents. Mesquite grew not only in numbers but in strength and
importance, becoming a viable agricultural center by the turn of the century. The town’s population increased
threefold between the 1890 and 1900 U. S. censuses - from 135 to 405 - and grew to 729 by 1930. Twenty
years later, in 1950, Mesquite was home to 1,696 citizens, and that is when explosive growth set in. The
population total jumped to 27,526 in 1960, to 67,053 in 1980, and to 124,523 in 2000. Today, the headcount
stands at an estimated 137,850, and Mesquite is still one of the most dynamic cities in the Metroplex, served
by excellent schools, churches, healthcare institutions, cultural and entertainment facilities, parks, playgrounds
and many other amenities.

HUTGHING

The City of Mesquite provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection, streets, health and
sanitation services, libraries and recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general
administrative services. Additionally, water and sewer utility services, drainage utility services, and the
municipal airport are provided under an enterprise fund concept, with user charges set by the City Council to
ensure adequate coverage of operating expenses and payments on outstanding debt where applicable. Certain
public safety, transportation, and parks and recreation services are provided through a legally separate Quality
of Life Corporation, which functions, in essence, as a department/fund of the City of Mesquite and,
therefore, has been included as an integral part of the City’s financial statements.

The City Council consists of the Mayor and six council members. Council members serve two-year terms and
are responsible for appointing the City Manager, Municipal Judge, City Attorney, City Secretary, and
members of various boards and commissions. The mayor and six council members are elected at large;
however, four Council positions have residency requirements.

Economic Condition and Outlook

Our Nation has experienced perhaps the longest economic recession since the Great Depression. A positive
factor for the City of Mesquite over the years has been the strength of the Dallas area economy. The



Metroplex has ranked high nationally in attracting new businesses and expansion of existing companies. The
area remains the distribution and financial center of the Southwest, and the growth of high-tech industries,
services industries, trade, and corporate headquarters have provided a strong, stable and diverse local
economy. These factors have helped curb the major economic downturn that our nation faces but have not
totally eliminated its effects.

Several positive factors exist which favor a continued optimistic economic outlook for the City including the
availability of affordable housing, a well-educated work force, a diversified financial and service-oriented
marketplace and a blossoming high technology trade. Mesquite also continues to benefit from having four
major highways crossing through its corporate limits. The City is well served by rail facilities and enjoys the
convenience of nearby Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport to meet commercial passenger air
transportation needs and also operates its own municipal airport facility.

With the opening of Town East Mall in 1970, Mesquite has long been recognized as a major retail area
within the Dallas/Fort Worth metroplex. Presently, there is over 4 million square feet of retail space, more
than 6 million square feet of total business space, and two restaurant rows offering over 30 restaurants and 42
movie screens. The expansion of the retail sector in the Mall area has continued southbound along the
Interstate Highway 635 corridor linking it with the Mesquite Rodeo Arena and Convention Center area.
This retail and entertainment destination is now collectively named 7he Rows of Texas.

The industrial side of Mesquite is equally impressive. The Skyline Industrial Park is 1,500 acres in size and is
home to the largest concentration of industries on the east side of the Metroplex. Ranging in size from the
small manufacturer employing less than ten people to the giants of industry such as United Parcel Service that
employ approximately 2,700 people, the Skyline Industrial Park is ideally located for manufacturing and

distribution industries.

Although there has been a decline in the national and local economy, the long-range economic outlook for
Mesquite is very promising. In recent years, Mesquite has been a leader in residential growth and is presently
strengthening its programs for attracting new and retaining existing businesses. Mesquite’s citizens and its
business community are committed to managed growth, and to maintaining the level of economic prosperity

and the quality of life Mesquite currently enjoys.

With continued emphasis on planned economic development and a commitment to the health and welfare of
its citizens, Mesquite will continue to attract new homes and businesses. An estimated 38% of its corporate
limits are presently undeveloped and Mesquite is certain to welcome many new citizens to our community in
the future.

Major Initiatives

For the Year. Following the directives of the City Council, a number of initiatives were undertaken during
the year to provide for and improve the quality of governmental services the citizens of Mesquite have come
to expect. These improvements were identified after a systematic review of all activities of the City in which
each program was analyzed to ensure that it was needed and wanted by the community and that it was being
provided with maximum efficiency at the lowest cost possible. An excellent source of information about the
City, its services, and current initiatives can be found at the City’s website. We encourage you to visit us at
http://'www.cityofmesquite.com.

Over the course of the past decade, Mesquite has enjoyed exceptional growth in its residential development.
From 1997 to the year 2009, over 7,000 new homes were built. This development has primarily occurred in
southeast Mesquite, where the largest concentration of undeveloped land is located. To accommodate
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additional growth, a thoroughfare plan was developed and is presently being implemented to provide
improved roadway access to and within this sector of the City. The need for other infrastructure
improvements was previously addressed with expansion of the water and sewer system and the opening of a
new fire station to serve the area. City Council has recently adopted an updated plan and development
standards for future residential development in the area. With higher standards covering such issues as
residential density, open space percentages, neighborhood amenities, minimum home sizes, and design
diversity, the City feels the long-term neighborhood viability in terms of stable or appreciating values will be
assured.

In north central Mesquite, a continued emphasis was placed on efforts to improve traffic conditions around
the Town East Mall and 7he Rows of Texas area. The City has funded signal projects, built alternative access
points, extended streets, and constructed dedicated turn lanes in an effort to keep motorists moving in the
area. Furthermore, the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT”) has completed the Town Centre
ramp project that provides entrance and exit ramps between IH635 and Town Center Drive and improves
access to the Mall area. TxDOT construction of Phase II of the Town East/IH635 area improvements was a
$45.9 million project to improve the Town East Blvd/IH635 Interchange, expand entrance and exit ramps,
and reconstruct sections of main-lane pavement on IH635 between Town East Blvd. and US Hwy 80. This
project was basically complete at the end of 2009.

For the Future. Existing projects such as new roads in the southeast, continued traffic improvements in 7he
Rows of Texas area, drainage improvements throughout the City, and new water storage and distribution
projects will continue to be a priority as well as maintenance and expansion of all the City’s general
infrastructure. To address these goals, the City has developed a five-year capital projects plan that provides a
framework for the development and maintenance of infrastructure to meet current and future needs. The plan
also provides a vehicle for prioritizing which projects should be undertaken first based on need as well as a
schedule for financing the construction.

During fiscal year 2009 the City continued on a deliberate process of community revitalization which
community leaders have called “Project Renewal”. Project Renewal’s goal is to achieve long-term economic
vitality through reinvestment and restoration throughout the City. Mesquite is an inner-ring suburb
community experiencing redevelopment issues like many of the central cities in North Texas. Based on this
challenge the City is proposing a very aggressive plan to improve the aesthetic appearance of the city, revive
older neighborhoods and bolster its retail and commercial development prospects. Project Renewal yielded
great results in 2009 with completion of the Super Target, continued redevelopment of the Market East
shopping area and development of the Peachtree Towne Center. There are great plans for Project Renewal in
2010 as well.

Continued support of efforts to maintain neighborhood integrity is a commitment of the City Council.
Funding will be provided in future budgets to expand code enforcement programs, beautification efforts,
infrastructure renewal, and public safety initiatives to help sustain neighborhood vitality and promote a
cleaner, safer, and healthier environment for our citizens. To preserve the value of our neighborhoods for
generations to come, the City continues to support “Addressing MESQUITE” — an initiative to raise
awareness about existing codes that maintain the appearance and condition of our area homes and
neighborhoods.

The Council also recognizes that the need to attract and retain a qualified workforce is dependent upon a
competitive compensation and benefit package for its employees. Future plans include continued support of
an adopted pay plan that establishes compensation for City employees at the “market midpoint” as
determined by a seven-city survey of peer cities. The Council also is committed to regular reviews of employee
benefits such as insurance, retirement, holidays, and working conditions to ensure that Mesquite is providing
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an attractive work environment. The City completed construction of a new Police facility in 2009 and broke

ground for a new City Hall in 2010.
Financial Information

City management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure design to
ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The internal control structure is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2)
the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Accounting System and Budgetary Controls

In addition, the City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the City Council.

Budgets are legally adopted by Council for governmental funds other than Capital Projects Funds and the
Other Special Revenue Fund, at the fund level of control. Project-length financial plans are adopted for
Capital Projects Funds. Advisory budgetary control is maintained at the object class level (personal services,
supplies, contractual services, capital outlay, etc.) in each departmental budget, and encumbrances are entered
at the time a purchase order is issued. Outstanding purchase orders are reported at year-end as reservations of
fund balances and the commitments will be honored during the subsequent year.

The budgetary process begins each year with the preparation of both revenue estimates and expenditure
requests by each city department. Budgets are reviewed by the Deputy City Manager, Assistant City
Manager, Finance Director and Budget Director. The City Manager makes final decisions and submits a
recommended budget to the City Council prior to August 15. The proposed budget is reviewed extensively by
the City Council, public hearings are conducted, and the budget is legally enacted by passage of an ordinance
prior to October 1.

As part of each year’s budget development process, departments are required to update expenditure estimates
for the current fiscal year. These estimates, as well as revenue estimate revisions, are reviewed by the Budget
Office, Finance Department, City Manager, and the City Council. The City Council approves the adoption
of the amended budget by ordinance.

During the course of the fiscal year, monthly expenditure reports are generated by the Accounting Division
using the City’s automated accounting system. These reports provide budget, expenditure, and encumbrance
data for each cost center. In addition, on-line inquiry capability is provided to every department to review
appropriation, project, document, and vendor file data. At month-end, a summarized Monthly Financial
Report is presented to the City Council.

Tax Rates

All eligible property within the City is subject to assessment, levy, and collection by the City of an ad valorem
tax sufficient to provide for the payment of principal and interest on outstanding bonds within the limits
prescribed by law, and the payment of maintenance and operation costs as approved by the City Council.
Under State law and provisions of the City Charter, the City is limited to a maximum tax rate of $2.50 per
$100 assessed valuation. The tax rate adopted by the City Council has historically been substantially lower
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than the maximum provided by law. Allocations of property tax levy by purpose for fiscal year 2009 and the

preceding two years are as follows (amounts per $100/assessed value):

Purpose 2009 2008 2007
Maintenance and Operations $.48727 $.48716 $.46246
Debt Service 0.15273 .15284 15754
Total Tax Rate $.64000 $.64000 $.62000
Debt Administration

The ratio of net general bonded debt to assessed value and the amount of net general bonded debt per capita
are useful indicators of the City’s debt position to municipal management, citizens, and investors. The data
tor the City of Mesquite at September 30, 2009 and 2008, as reflected in the Statistical Section, Schedule 11
is as follows:

2009 2008
Net General Bonded Debt $ 106,267,836 $100,642,473
Ratio of Net Bonded Debt to Assessed Value 1.76 % 1.59 %
Debt per Capita $ 770.89 $ 731.68

The City's general obligation bonds have been assigned the rating of Aa3 by Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
and AA by the Standard and Poor's Ratings Services for the current year issues. The current year revenue
bond issue was assigned Aa3 by Moody's and AA by Standard and Poor's. The City's current year revenue
bond issuance is insured by Financial Security Assurance, Inc. with their ratings of Aa3 by Moody’s, AAA by
Standard and Poor’s and AA+ by Fitch Rating Services.

Cash Management

The City pools its cash balances for investment purposes. A primary objective of the City’s investment
program is the safety and preservation of the principal. The City purchases treasury bills, notes and
government agencies, as well as funds from local government investment pools consisting of these securities.
The average yield on investments was 1.92% for the year, and the amount of interest earned was $2,134,863
after recording a $250,637 net unrealized gain attributable to marking investments to their fair value as of
September 30, 2009. The City’s investment performance ranks favorably when compared to market yield
rates. The City’s investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive
yield on its portfolio. Accordingly, deposits are either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized.
All collateral on deposits is held by a third-party custodial bank in the City’s name.

Employee’s Retirement System
The City participates in the Texas Municipal Retirement System which is a statewide, nontraditional, joint

contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan that covers all employees who are eligible. The Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements provides detailed information on the Retirement Plan.
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Other Information

Certificate of Achievement. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (“GFOA”) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of
Mesquite, Texas, for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2008. This was the thirtieth consecutive year that the City has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, 2 government must publish an casily rcadable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles
and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgements. The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department. We would like to express our
appreciation to all members of the department who assisted and contributed to its preparation. We would also
like to thank the Mayor, City Council, and City Manager for their interest and support in planning and
conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully Submitted,

Donatd W Lo

Director of Finance

Joborsh A 1Ve?

Accounting Manager
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o Grant Thornton

Independent Auditors’ Report

Audit » Tax = Advisory

Grant Thornton LLP
1717 Main Street, Suite 1500
Dallas, TX 75201-4667

T 214.561.2300
F214.561.2370
www.GrantThornton.com

The Honorable Mayor, City Council and City Manager
The City of Mesquite, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, ecach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Mesquite, Texas (the
City), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America as established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activites, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of The City of Mesquite, Texas, as of September 30, 2009, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the general fund and the major special revenue funds for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 14, the 2008 basic financial statements have been restated to correct errors related to
capital assets.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 29, 2010 on out
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Grant Thornton LLP
U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International | td
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Management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 13 and schedules of Texas Municipal Retirement
System Analysis of Funding Progress and the Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Post Employment
Benefits (OPEB) on page 62 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information listed in the
table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. ‘The combining fund financial statements and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements, and individual fund budget to actual schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical
information have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

G,LA o | oen oA (P

Dallas, Texas
March 29, 2010

Grant Thornton LLP
.S, member firm of Grant Thomton International Ltd



Mesquite, City of Texas
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

As management of the City of Mesquite, we offerdega of the City's financial statements this nareat
overview and analysis of the financial activitidgtee City for the fiscal year ended September289. We
encourage readers to consider the information ptedehere in conjunction with our letter of tranatiat
the front of this report and the financial statetaaxhich follow this section.

Financial Highlights

- The assets of the City exceeded its liabilitietha close of the most recent fiscal year by $3@6on
(net assets). Of this amount, approximately $2%aniunrestricted net assets) may be used to theet
government's ongoing obligations to citizens aredlitors.

- The City's total net assets decreased by $25omithis fiscal year with 57 percent of the deceeas
attributable to activities which receive taxes atiger nonexchange revenues (governmental activities
and the remainder from business activities.

- As of the close of the current fiscal year, thy ©f Mesquite's governmental funds reported corabi
ending fund balances of $61 million, a decreas&1df million from the prior year. Of this amount,
$51.6 million is unreserved and available for spegpdubject to the City's self-imposed limitatidngs
management for intended use.

- At year-end, the undesignated and unreserved lfafehce for the general fund was $16.5 million and
total fund balance was $18 million. Total fund @ represents over 18.2 percent of expenditurés an
transfers out and exceeds the 15 percent requyréaelCity's adopted fund balance policy. On aenirr
financial resources basis, total fund balance Hier general fund increased $596 thousand which was
primarily the result of a decrease in transfers toutlebt service and capital projects for the yelr.
should also be noted that although sales tax revand investment income decreased by a combined
$1.9 million the City decreased total expenditurg$4.5 million.

- The City's net bonded debt decreased by $2.2omituring this current fiscal year. The City isdue
general obligation debt for street, equipment, mipal building improvements, and new facilities as
well as revenue bonded debt for water and seweroivaments.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to sesvanaintroduction to the City of Mesquite's basnafcial
statements. The City's basic financial statemerdgscamprised of three components: 1) governmengwid
financial statements, 2) fund financial statemeatg] 3) notes to the financial statements. Thignteglso
contains other supplementary information in additmthe basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are desigo provide
readers with a broad overview of the City’s finasyda a manner similar to a private sector busin®@se of
the most important questions asked about the Gihasices is, "Is the City of Mesquite in a befieancial
position at the end of this fiscal year comparelhsb year?" The government-wide financial statesegport
information about the City as a whole and aboutisvities in a way that helps to answer this tjoas
Other non-financial factors should be taken intostderation, such as changes in the City's propaxtypase
and the condition of the City's streets to asdesgverall health or financial condition of theyCit



The statement of net assets presents informaticall af the City's assets and liabilities, with tiliference
between the two reported as net assets. Over tmti@ases or decreases in net assets may servesatua
indicator of whether the financial position of {G&y is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents informatioomghg how the City's net assets changed durindisical
year. All changes in net assets are reported wherunderlying event giving rise to the change ascur
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. §hnevenues and expenses are reported in thisngtatdor
some items that will only result in cash flows e tfuture fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxed @arned
but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statementstidguish functions of the City that are princigall
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revengege(nmental activities) from the functions thag¢ ar
intended to recover all or a significant portiontbéir costs through user fees and charges (bsstype
activities). Governmental activities include modttbe City's basic services such as fire, policedec
compliance, library, parks and recreation, and canmity services as well as general government aietsvi
The business-type activities of the City includetevaand sewer, drainage utility, and municipal aitp
services.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that isdug maintain control over
resourceghat have been segregated for specific activitresbpectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure andortdrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can bwidkd into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for esdlgriti@ same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide fiicial statements. However, unlike the governmewuliewi
financial statements, governmental fund financiatesnents focus on current sources and uses ofiaplen
resources, as well as on balances of spendablercesoavailable at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a governtsemear-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrtineer that of the government-wide financial statetsigit

is useful to compare the information presentedtiergovernmental funds with similar information geated

for governmental activities in the government-witteancial statements. By doing so, readers mayebett
understand the long-term impact of the governmerger term financing decisions. Both the governaient
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund staiewf revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitatestbdomparison between governmental funds and goertain
activities.

The City maintains ten governmental funds. Infolibratis presented separately in the governmental fun
balance sheet and in the governmental fund statenfieevenues, expenditures, and changes in fulzchbes
for the General, Housing Grants Special Revenuglituof Life Corporation (4B Sales Tax) Special
Revenue and Bond Finance Capital Project fundsfalthich are to be considered major funds. Dabanfr
the other six funds are combined into a singlereggfed presentation. Individual fund data for ¢hesn-
major governmental funds is provided in the forntofbining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budgettéomiajor governmental funds. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the General, Quddlitife Corporation (4B Sales Tax) Special Reveand

the Housing Grants Special Revenue funds as pé#nedfasic financial statements to demonstrate Gange
with these budgets.



Proprietary funds. The City maintains two types of proprietary funBsterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type aaivwiti¢he government-wide financial statements. Titg
uses enterprise funds to account for its water savader, drainage utility, and municipal airport giEms.
Internal service funds are an accounting device tiseaccumulate and allocate costs internally antbeg
City's various functions. The City uses internaivie funds to account for its group health inseeand
general liability insurance programs. Both of thggegrams are predominantly governmental activities
however, as they benefit both governmental andnlessitype activities, current year results haven bee
allocated by function in the government-wide finahstatements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of inforamats the government-wide financial statementl; ion
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statetseprovide separate information for the Water Sadier
and Drainage Utility funds since both are considaebe major funds of the City. Because the Mynaiki
Airport fund is the only remaining enterprise fuiids being presented in a separate column eveugth it
does not meet the criteria of a major fund. Corelgrdoth of the internal service funds are comthimto a
single, aggregated presentation in the propriefang financial statements. Individual fund data the
internal service funds is provided in the form ofmbining statements elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resoureds for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected ia government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to stighbe City's own programs. The City reports onheo
fiduciary fund, an agency fund entitled the TaxaCileg fund. As the City collects ad valorem taxasioth

the City and the Mesquite Independent School Rista separate legal entity, funds are held inatipency
account until amounts due each government canteendeed and distributed. The basic financial stetiets
include a statement of fiduciary assets and ligdsli The accounting used for this fiduciary fugadriuch like

that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that isesgtial to a full under-
standing of the data provided in the governmenevddd fund financial statements. The notes camiedf
immediately following the basic financial statensent

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements aacompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary informatimmcerning the City's progress in funding its gduiion

to provide pension benefits to its employees. Requsupplementary information immediately follovire t
notes to the basic financial statements.

The combining statements referred to earlier innegtion with nonmajor governmental funds and irdern
service funds are presented immediately followihg tequired supplementary information on pensions.
Schedules for certain budgeted nonmajor specielmg funds follow their combining statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over tingeuseful indicator of government's financial posit In the
case of the City of Mesquite, assets exceededitiabiby $306 million as of September 30, 2009.

The largest portion of the City's net assets (efeent) reflects its investment in capital as¢etg., land,
buildings, equipment, improvements, infrastructared construction in progress), less any debt used t
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. Citye uses these capital assets to provide setvio#izens;
consequently these assets are not available fodspe Although the City's investment in its cap#asets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted the resources needed to repay this debt mystavided
from other sources, since the capital assets tHeesseannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.



City of Mesquite's Net Assets
(in Thousands)

Govemmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

FY2009 FY2008 FY2009 FY2008 FY2009 FY2008

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

Current and other assets $ 79,682 $ 91,677 $ 43,206 $ 41,348 $122,888 $133,025

Capital assets 232,455 221,182 173,381 165,985 405,836 387,167

Total assets 312,137 312,859 216,587 207,333 528,724 520,192

Long-term liabilities outstanding 131,451 126,519 75,292 71,512 206,743 198,031

Other liabilities 9,184 11,608 6,219 4,942 15,403 16,550

Total liabilities 140,635 138,127 81,511 76,454 222,146 214,581
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 149,214 144,101 118,870 113,189 268,084 257,290

Restricted net assets 6,131 13,776 3,386 4,300 9,517 18,076

Unrestricted net assets 16,157 16,855 12,820 13,390 28,977 30,245

Total net assets $171,502 $174,732 $135,076 $130,879 $306,578 $305,611

An additional portion of the City's net assets (Betcent) represents resources that are subjesttéonal
restriction on how they may be used. The remaibiaignce of unrestricted net assets of $29 milliay ime
used to meet the government's ongoing obligatiaitizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the CityMésquite is able to report positive balances intlaiée
categories of net assets, both for the City as aleytas well as for its separate governmental arsinbss-
type activities. The same situation held true far prior fiscal year.



Analysis of the City's Operations.Governmental and Business-type activities incretiseity's net assets
by $969 thousand. The key elements of this incraadehe prior year results are as follows:

City of Mesquite's Change in Net Assets
(in Thousands)

Governmental Activities ~ Business-type Activities Total
FY2009 FY2008 FY2009 FY2008 FY2009 FY2008
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 27,073 $ 27,794 $ 39,220 $ 38856 $ 66,293 $ 66,650
Operating grants and contributions 12,222 12,603 - - 12,222 12,603
Capital grants and contributions 1,360 6,977 3,110 6,018 4,470 12,995
General revenues:

Ad valorem taxes 40,791 40,577 - - 40,791 40,577
Gross receipts taxes 7,617 7,677 - - 7,617 7,677
Sales taxes 33,348 35,339 - - 33,348 35,339
Sale of capital assets 92 2 11 11 103 13
Investment income 1,467 3,402 668 1,220 2,135 4,622
Total revenues 123,970 134,371 43,009 46,105 166,979 180,476

Expenses:
General government 19,888 19,410 - - 19,888 19,410
Fire services 23,531 24,670 - - 23,531 24,670
Police services 31,767 32,265 - - 31,767 32,265
Field services 13,608 13,970 - - 13,608 13,970
Public works 3,552 4,529 - - 3,552 4,529
Community development 3,510 3,636 - - 3,510 3,636
Housing & community services 14,017 12,684 - - 14,017 12,684
Library services 1,939 2,127 - - 1,939 2,127
Parks and recreation 12,940 9,446 - - 12,940 9,446
Interest on long-term debt 4,649 4,519 - - 4,649 4,519
Water and sewer - - 33,431 31,939 33,431 31,939
Drainage utility - - 1,714 1,817 1,714 1,817
Municipal airport - - 1,602 1,721 1,602 1,721
Total expenses 129,401 127,256 36,747 35,477 166,148 162,733
Increase in net assets before transfers (5,431) 7,115 6,262 10,628 831 17,743
Transfers 2,202 6,971 (2,202) (6,971) - -
Increase in net assets (3,229) 14,086 4,060 3,657 831 17,743
Net assets - October 1, 2008 as restated 174,731 171,815 131,016 142,387 305,747 314,202
Net assets - September 30, 2009 $ 171,502 $ 185,901 $ 135,076 $ 146,044 $ 306,578 $ 331,945

Governmental Activities
Governmental activities decreased the City of Méstgunet assets by $3.2 million.

The City’s program revenues from governmental @@y decreased approximately $6.7 million (14.2
percent) during the year. Charges for servicesredsed approximately $721 thousand, operating
grants/contributions decreased approximately $38iudand and capital grants/contributions decreased
approximately $5.6 million. The decrease in charge services is due to less roadway impact feésated

in fiscal year 2009 and to a grass and weed adgrdtin fiscal year 2008 that was not repeatedsicefi year
2009. Operating grants/contributions decreased tdua decrease in the Housing Grants fund contract



revenues being down by approximately $381 thousaFtus fluctuates from year to year depending an th
timing of grant activity. Capital grants/contribris are down due to a decrease in developer’sibatibns

by approximately $2.5 million and a decrease iimbeirsements received for joint venture projects by
approximately $3.1 million in the Quality of LifdB) fund and Local Finance Capital Projects fund.

General revenues of the City’'s governmental agtiwidecreased $3.7 million during the year. Geénera
revenue from sales taxes was 5.6 percent lowethi®ryear, a decrease of $1.9 million due to current
economic conditions. Investment income decrease@l iillion due to the continued downturn in the ker
during the year. The decreases in sales taxednaedtment income were offset by a slight increimse
property tax revenues received of $214 thousand.

Expenses for the City's governmental activitieseeigmced a net increase of $2.1 million compareéi e
prior fiscal year. The major increases were in &ah Government ($478 thousand), Housing and
Community Services, and Parks and Recreation ($8lBn). These increases were offset by decreases
Fire Services ($1.1 million), Police Services ($4B8usand), Field Services ($362 thousand), andidPub
Works ($977 thousand). For all of the categorfest have personal service expenditures for salanes
related benefits there was a wage freeze with garuaease to employees for the fiscal year. Alaiitp the
wage freeze there were several vacant positioriswteee not filled. In the General Government catgg
most departments were able to reduce spendingpmffeset reductions in various revenue sourdésneral
Government did experience a slight increase indipgnargely due to budgeted capital project spemdin

the Local Finance fund. Housing & Community seegichad increased grant spending in correlation to
increased grant monies available. Parks and Reundead several large operating expense type g@sofbat
were closed during the fiscal year causing thetal ®xpenditures to be higher than last fiscal yekire
Services purchased a fire truck in 2007/08 that ma@spart of the activity for 2008/09. Fire sergcand
Police Services both worked hard to minimize theoam of overtime for the year. Field Services
experienced a reduction in expenditures due langelgwer fuel costs than the previous year. Ruliorks
had less spending due to less spending on capiglgs in the Quality of Life (4B) Fund.

Business-type Activities
Business-type activities increased the City of Miss net assets by $4.2 million.

The City's overall revenues for business-type dmss decreased slightly by approximately $3.1 il
during the fiscal year. The majority of the progreewenues for the City's business-type activitresfeom its
water and sewer operations. Water and sewer custcimaeges increased slightly by $319 thousand due t
rate increases for both water ($0.51 per 1,00bgs)l and sewer ($0.44 per 1,000 gallons) chargeis. T
increase was offset by a decrease in consumptienadonore rainfall during the year in 2008/09 asmpared

to the previous year. Capital grants and contidimstdecreased by $2.9 million due to fewer countidns by
developers in the Water and Sewer fund and thenBgai Utility District fund. Overall constructioa down

in the City due to the poor economy therefore dmwel’'s projects are down as well. Interest income
continued to decrease in 2009 due to the contipoed condition of the market.

Expenses attributable to the business-type a&svitincreased by approximately $1.1 million (3.2%i¥ t
fiscal year. The increase is primarily due to a 1@% increase from North Texas Municipal Watertiis

for treated water and sewer treatment charges. trilesfers for 2008/09 were lower than 2007/08 #8$
million as well. In 2007/2008 there was a trangfet to the Capital Projects Reserve fund for $gifion
from the Water and Sewer Revenue Reserve Funds tidrisfer was available due to a change in theeWat
and Sewer bond covenant requirements and was peater in 2008/09. Transfers in were higher in
2008/2009 by $2.1 million for a transfer for asgmtschased by the City’s governmental type funasttie
airport enterprise fund.



Financial Analysis of the City's Funds

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Mesquite's governmentaldsiis to provide information on the
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spblaeesources. Such information is useful in assgtbe
City's financing requirements. In particular, urmme®ed fund balance may serve as a useful measuse of
government's net resources available for spendittgeaend of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Citytsrgrnmental funds reported combined ending funédrzas
of $61.1 million. Approximately 85 percent of thistal amount ($51.6 million) constitutes unreserfiad
balance. The remainder of the fund balance is vedeto indicate that it is not available to pay faw
spending because it has already been committedytdqr encumbrances, prepaids, and inventory dd $8.
million and debt service of $612 thousand. The fbatince for all governmental funds decreased loy6$1
million from the previous fiscal year. This deeas explained below individually by fund.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of @ity of Mesquite. At the end of the current fisyalar,
unreserved fund balance of the General fund wass$ifllion while the total fund balance was at ®17.
million. The total fund balance increased by $38usand. As a measure of the General Fund's iiguit
may be useful to compare both the unreserved fateghbe and total fund balance to total fund exparnss
and transfers out. Unreserved fund balance repied#n7 percent of total General Fund expenditares
transfers out, while the total fund balance repr=s&8.1 percent of that same amount. By the Giiytspted
fund balance policy, fund balance is required toeex] expenditures and transfers out by 15 percent.

In the General Fund, total revenues decreased af§@asillion from the prior year. Sales tax anddstment
income continued to decline by almost $2 millionieth is attributed to tougher competition from
surrounding retail areas, the declining economy, poor market conditions. On the expenditure side,
actual expenditures decreased approximately $4lmi There was an overall effort by the Cityreduce
spending in every area. Most of the decrease inah&xpenditures was in general government ($792
thousand), Police services ($1.1 million), Fieldvas ($894 thousand) and Parks and recreatior? ($1
million). The decrease in General government was tb an overall effort by departments to reduce
expenditures and two larger expenditures in 20@8208at were not incurred in 2008/2009; one fordbst

of the interim police chief and the other for bagbtlexpense. The decrease in Police services wasod
reduction in overtime and reduction in the costuefl used in police vehicles. The decrease indservices
was due to less vehicle and equipment purchas2808/2009 and reduced fuel costs for City vehicl€se
reduction in Parks and Recreation was due to aease in the reimbursement from the Quality of [(4B)
Fund for Parks and recreation operations and actieduin various programs no longer offered. Sgsim
most functional areas allowed for overall budgetattual savings of over $575 thousand. Expenditures
excess of budget in Parks and recreation of $5@0st#md are due to work order credit reimbursenfeorts
Quality of Life (4B Sales Tax) fund that did notkéaplace. This reimbursement is based on actual
expenditures which came in less than originally gaidd. Expenditures in excess of budget in Police
services of $422 thousand is due to overtime notig in as low as originally budgeted.

The Housing Grants Fund is a major special revémoe used to account for funds awarded the Cityhey

U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Developmearttet their housing assistance program. The fund
balance is approximately $1.2 million at the endhef year. Fund balance decreased by $1.2 millitis
decrease was due to an increase in expenditurappobximately $1.2 million. The expenditures rel&d
multi-year grants that carry over from year-to-yeltoney for the expenditures was available in the
beginning fund balance. Intergovernmental revenerg $1.6 million less than the amount budgetesitdu
grant monies awarded during the year that had eet irawn on by year end. The programs are megti-y
and will be carried over to the next fiscal year.



The Mesquite Quality of Life Corporation (4B Saleax) Special Revenue Fund is used to account fatsu
received from a one-half of one percent generakssahx, which can be utilized for public safety,
transportation or parks and recreation purpos&he fund balance at year end is $4.3 million, $Rioni of
which is reserved for encumbrances. Fund balaeceedsed almost $5.8 million which is the result of
capital project spending in 2008/09 on projectd&din the prior year, an increase in the subgsidyarks
and Recreation operations, and a slight reductiosales tax revenues of approximately $500 thousand
Revenues were under budget in Contributions anditdors largely due to reimbursements from the Texas
Department of Transportation not received prioy¢ar end. Planned project spending was also hess t
budgeted. The projects in the Quality of Life (4Bhd carry forward from year to year as the fuads set
aside for each project.

The Bond Finance capital projects fund is a majodfused to account for capital project expenditdirem

the proceeds of governmental debt. Fund balangesatend is $22 million, $4.4 million of whichrisserved

for encumbrances and $17.6 million is unreservedtépital projects. The fund balance decreasefiday
thousand which is the result of capital projectrgfdeg in 2008/09 on projects funded in the pricaryeThis
amount was part of the reserve for encumbrancéseatnd of 2007/08. Investment income increasedtalu
bond proceeds received for upcoming capital prsjecProject spending carries over from year to year
depending on the scheduled activity.

Proprietary funds. The City's proprietary fund statements providegame type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in ma&idl Unrestricted net assets of the Water ande&md
at the end of the year amounted to $11.5 millioth #uose for the Drainage Utility District amounted$1.5
million. The total change in net assets for bothdiwas $1.6 million and $500 thousand, respegtividie
factors concerning the finances of the Water andeBéund have already been addressed in the disousk
the City of Mesquite’s business-type activitiesheTDrainage Utility District fund operating resuligere
consistent with prior year except for a decreaseadntributions from developers of $1.2 million. €rh
decrease in developer’s contributions is due teaahse in overall development throughout the Qiky to
current economic conditions.

Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2009, the City had ov4®% million (net of accumulated depreciation) irteelsin
capital assets for its governmental and busingss-activities in a broad range of capital asseiduding
police and fire equipment, buildings, park fac#gj roads, bridges, and water and sewer lines.tdtaé
increase in the City of Mesquite's investment ipited assets (net of accumulated depreciation) s
percent for the current fiscal year.

City of Mesquite's Capital Assets
(Net of Depreciation, in Thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
Land $ 21,701 $ 19,852 $ 9,667 $ 7129 $ 31368 $ 26,981
Construction in progress 60,448 48,534 8,431 5,381 68,879 53,915
Buildings 33,271 33,275 4,256 3,000 37,527 36,275
Infrastructure 89,612 92,988 149,019 148,453 238,631 241,441
Improvements 8,841 8,368 274 294 9,115 8,662
Equipment 18,582 18,165 1,734 1,728 20,316 19,893
Totals $ 232455 $ 221,182 $ 173381 $ 165,985 $ 405836 $ 387,167
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Major capital asset events during the current figear include the following:

Almost $27 million was expended for capitedjpcts in 2009 and $12 million was completed aladgx
in service.

- Over $5.2 million was expended for transportationd street and alley projects including continuirogk
on Tripp Road, Driftwood Drive Extension, State Rigay 352 and US 80 Interchange construction,
Peach Tree Bridge and traffic signal progression.

- Progress continued on upgrading City facilitieshwover $7 million being expended toward the new
police facility, almost $1 million expended towattte new City Hall building and $3 million being
expended on various other municipal improvemen3tk/@n the police facilities building was completed
in 2009.

- Almost $2.1 million was spent on Parks and Reaveatiapital projects for items such as playground
replacements, recreation facility parking lots,yQiake restrooms, park land acquisition, and variou
other building renovations and projects.

- Current year outlay for the water and sewer systepital projects was $6.4 million and $2.1 millioh
infrastructure and buildings was completed andgadnto service.

- Current year outlay for drainage utility capitalojcts was $365 thousand and $282 thousand of
infrastructure was completed and placed into servic

- The Mesquite Municipal Airport acquired land fotufte expansion in the amount of $2.5 million. City
bond proceeds were made available to the airpdun this purchase.

Additional information on the City of Mesquite'spti@l assets can be found in Note 5 of the Noteth¢o
Basic Financial Statements.

Debt Administration

At year-end, the City had $179.9 million in net Hed debt outstanding. Of this total amount, $10&l8on
or 59 percent is comprised of bonded debt backatidfull faith and credit of the City. The remaémaf the
City's debt represents bonds secured by spec#diehue sources (i.e., revenue bonds).

City of Mesquite's Outstanding Net Bonded Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds (in Thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
General obligation $ 36,972 $ 37,568 $ - 3 - $ 36972 $ 37,568
Certificates of obligation 61,560 55,250 - - 61,560 55,250
Public property finance

contractual obligations 7,440 7,610 - - 7,440 7,610

Revenue bonds - - 73,967 70,137 73,967 70,137
Totals $105,972 $100,428 $ 73,967 $ 70,137 $ 179,939 $ 170,565
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During the fiscal year, there were the followingotléssuances: $4.2 million in general obligatiorbtd®
advance refund prior tax exempt bonds; $11.3 millad certificate of obligation debt for construgin
improving, equipping and renovating the Police/Gitgll facility, acquisition of land for municipalirgort
purposes, professional fees and costs to providetrehic records management, major repairs and
improvements to existing municipal buildings, anithes street, alley and sidewalk improvements; $1.9
million in contractual obligations for equipmentda$8.4 million of revenue bonds for water and sewe
improvements.

The City's general obligation bonds have been aedighe rating of Aa3 by Moody's Investors Servine,

and AA by the Standard and Poor's Ratings Serdaethese most recent issues. The revenue bonwsati
were Aa3 by Moody's and AA by Standard and Poditge City's current year revenue bond issuance is
insured by Financial Security Assurance, Inc. vtitair ratings of Aa3 by Moody’s, AAA by Standarddan
Poor’'s and AA+ by Fitch Rating Services.

Additional information on the City's long-term bawldebt can be found in Note 7 of the Notes tdBhsic
Financial Statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The economic outlook for next year is slow recovieoyn perhaps the longest economic recession siece
Great Depression. The mandate for all City depamtshfor the new fiscal year was to hold the lineedluce
expenditures in all areas as much as possibleebttearnings and sales tax revenues seem to éeteout

in the first few months of the new year after eigreeing several months of decline. In order tospre a
balanced budget for the new year with no propeatyihcrease, it was necessary to increase therfgndi
received from the Quality of Life (4B) fund for faoperations.

In the midst of the economic downturn the City amnes its emphasis dProject Renewal, a bold, strategic
initiative to bring about real change and enhan@sduite’s competitive position in the commercietai
and residential arenas. The goal R¥bject Renewal is to achieve long-term economic vitality through
reinvestment and restoration throughout the Cithe City has experienced great results from thigm@mm
thus far with the Peachtree Towne Center developn@mpletion of the Super Target and continued
redevelopment of the Market East shopping areaer@enew restaurants have been added to the €ityel

as many renovation projects that are revitalizixigteng unoccupied buildings.

In the 2009-10 budget General Fund revenues andféis in are projected to decrease by 3.6 pefoemt

the 2008-09 final budget with the majority of tidecrease coming from general property tax revenues.
General property tax revenue (Ad valorem tax reegiidetermined by two major factors: the totalkeased
property value established by the Dallas CentraprAsal District and the tax rate set by City Calnc
Certified assessed valuations decreased 6.1 pareenthe preceding year while the City tax ratk rgimain

the same at $.64 per $100 of assessed valuati@n20®9-10 budget does include modest increasesme s

of the other revenue line items that offset therele®e in General property tax revenue. Generatl Fun
expenditures and transfers out are budgeted & pe3cent decrease over the 2008-09 final budgetels
This decrease is attributable to the expenditutaatons noted above.

The Dallas-Fort Worth metroplex has experiencederceptionally strong and expanding economy until
recent years when signs of economic weakness hafgesd. Decreased consumer spending, increasghg hi
energy costs, unemployment, the downturn in thesimgumarket and a slowdown in regional growth have
again impacted the City budget for the upcomingdlisyear. General sales tax receipts are projected
recover slightly with an approximate 3.1 percemt@ase over the prior year's receipts. This regesaurce
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comprises almost 25 percent of General Fund reweand transfers in. This revenue source is the most
volatile and subject to decline if the economiaglown worsens.

It is anticipated that under the proposed budgatttie City will be able to maintain service levatsl goals
developed in the strategic plan and continue thiemigitiatives undeProject Renewal. The adopted 2009-
10 General Fund budget totals $96.6 million in exiieires and transfers out, a decrease of $3.6mi(|B.6
percent). Total fund balance is projected to renu@ichanged in fiscal year 2010.

Contacting the City's Financial Management
The financial report is designed to provide ouizeits, customers, investors and creditors with reeige
overview of the City's finances. If you have quassi about this report or need any additional infdram,

contact the Finance Department, Attn: Accountinghbtger, at P. O. Box 850137, Mesquite, Texas 75185-
0137, call (972) 216-6287 or e-maildmhol @ci.mesquite.tx.us.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2009

ASSETS:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Internal balances
Inventory
Prepaids and other assets
Accrued interest
Net Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Asset
Capital assets-
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation)

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Deposits and other liabilities
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year:
Capital lease payable
Bonds payable
Notes payable
Accrued compensated absences
Estimated claims payable
Due in more than one year:
Capital lease payable
Bonds payable
Notes payable
Accrued compensated absences
Estimated claims payable

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Housing grants
Debt service
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
62,336,425 $ 35,607,246 $ 97,943,671
13,605,193 6,351,672 19,956,865
301,848 (301,848) -
753,988 373,630 1,127,618
1,631,438 1,148,000 2,779,438
117,095 27,638 144,733
935,853 - 935,853
82,148,926 18,098,072 100,246,998
150,306,458 155,282,999 305,589,457
312,137,224 216,587,409 528,724,633
7,672,707 $ 2,627,798 10,300,505
721,786 257,663 979,449
789,146 3,333,795 4,122,941
19,083 38,965 58,048
7,100,000 5,125,000 12,225,000
472,439 - 472,439
6,701,463 258,032 6,959,495
1,291,963 - 1,291,963
13,117 48,455 61,572
98,872,313 68,842,504 167,714,817
4,422,953 - 4,422,953
11,864,321 978,819 12,843,140
693,926 - 693,926
140,635,217 81,511,031 222,146,248
149,214,163 118,870,430 268,084,593
4,322,943 - 4,322,943
1,196,089 - 1,196,089
612,164 3,385,949 3,998,113
16,156,648 12,819,999 28,976,647
$ 171,502,007 $ 135,076,378 306,578,385

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

FUNCTION / PROGRAM ACTIVITIES:
Governmental activities:
General government
Fire services
Police services
Field services
Public works
Community development
Housing & community services
Library services
Parks and recreation
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water and sewer
Drainage utility
Municipal airport

Total business-type activities

Total function / program activities

Program Revenues

Charges for

Operating
Grants and

Capital
Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions

$ 19,888,003 $ 5,214,118 $ 147812 $ -
23,531,205 2,129,991 430,794 -
31,767,343 4,734,922 197,641 -
13,608,158 6,992,037 - 1,295,568
3,551,737 805,774 63,043 8,762
3,509,593 5,437,650 628,107 56,231
14,016,611 237,637 10,713,072 -
1,939,013 82,322 26,182 -
12,940,100 1,438,892 14,895 -
4,649,243 - - -
129,401,006 27,073,343 12,221,546 1,360,561
33,430,803 35,713,630 - 3,110,062
1,713,996 2,170,494 - -
1,601,994 1,336,083 - -
36,746,793 39,220,207 - 3,110,062
$166,147,799 $ 66,293550 $ 12,221546 $ 4,470,623

General revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Gross receipts taxes
Sales taxes
Sale of capital assets
Investment income
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning as restated

Net assets - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ (14,526,073) $ - $ (14,526,073)
(20,970,420) - (20,970,420)
(26,834,780) - (26,834,780)
(5,320,553) - (5,320,553)
(2,674,158) - (2,674,158)
2,612,395 - 2,612,395
(3,065,902) - (3,065,902)
(1,830,509) - (1,830,509)
(11,486,313) - (11,486,313)
(4,649,243) - (4,649,243)
(88,745,556) - (88,745,556)
- 5,392,889 5,392,889
- 456,498 456,498
- (265,911) (265,911)
- 5,583,476 5,583,476
(88,745,556) 5,683,476 (83,162,080)
40,791,034 - 40,791,034
7,617,049 - 7,617,049
33,347,607 - 33,347,607
91,640 11,511 103,151
1,466,971 667,892 2,134,863
2,202,385 (2,202,385) -
85,516,686 (1,522,982) 83,993,704
(3,228,870) 4,060,494 831,624

174,730,877 131,015,884 305,746,761
$ 171,502,007 $ 135,076,378 $ 306,578,385
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

September 30, 2009

ASSETS:

Pooled cash and investments

Receivables (net of allowance):
Accounts receivable
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes receivable
Assessments
Intergovernmental

Due from other funds

Inventory

Prepaids

Accrued interest

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Contracts payable

Deposits

Due to other funds

Deferred revenues

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Prepaids
Inventory
Debt retirement

Unreserved reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Capital project funds

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Quiality of Life Other Total
Housing Corporation Bond Governmental Governmental

General Grants (4B Sales Tax) Finance Funds Funds
$ 13,401,801 $ 1,231,761 $ 4,351,719 $ 23,360,012 $ 16,370,053 $ 58,715,346
3,832,537 53,125 - 41,196 - 3,926,858
1,401,502 - - - - 1,401,502
1,633,855 - - - - 1,633,855
- - - 324,954 - 324,954
4,134,899 - 1,355,682 - 827,444 6,318,025
992,097 - - - - 992,097
753,988 - - - - 753,988
60,966 - - - 6,926 67,892
37,238 3,027 23,718 48,938 1,674 114,595
$ 26,248,883 $ 1,287,913 $ 5,731,119 $ 23,775,100 $ 17,206,097 $ 74,249,112
$ 3,874,953 $ 38,699 $ 885,176 $ 91,624 $ 221,220 $ 5,111,672
- - 523,000 1,368,708 20,050 1,911,758
315,338 - - - 473,808 789,146
- - - - 824,992 824,992
4,098,926 53,125 - 353,154 5,000 4,510,205
8,289,217 91,824 1,408,176 1,813,486 1,545,070 13,147,773
625,214 - 2,030,947 4,430,282 1,020,742 8,107,185
60,966 - - - - 60,966
753,988 - - - - 753,988
- - - - 612,164 612,164
16,519,498 - - - - 16,519,498
- 1,196,089 2,291,996 - 3,360,085 6,848,170
- - - 17,531,332 10,668,036 28,199,368
17,959,666 1,196,089 4,322,943 21,961,614 15,661,027 61,101,339
$ 26,248,883 $ 1,287,913 $ 5,731,119 $ 23,775,100 $ 17,206,097 $ 74,249,112

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
of Governmental Funds

To the Statement of Net Assets

As of September 30, 2009

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:

Total fund balance per balance sheet

Net other post employment benefit asset in the governmental type activities is not a
current financial resource and therefore is not reported in the governmental funds
balance sheet.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.

Other long-term assets less related uncollectibles are not available to
pay for current period expenditures and therefore are offset by deferred
revenues in the governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
health claims and general liability to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities are included in governmental activities in the statement of
net assets.

Accrued interest payable on long-term debt does not require current
financial resources and therefore is not reported as a liability in the
balance sheet of governmental funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in
the governmental funds. Long-term liabilities consist of:

General obligation bonds payable

Certificate of obligation bonds payable

Public property finance contractual obligations payable
Notes Payable

Capital lease payable

Less: deferred amounts

Accrued compensated absences

Net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 61,101,339

935,853

232,455,384

4,510,205

1,443,877

(721,787)
(37,880,000)
(61,560,000)
(7,440,000)
(4,895,392)
(32,200)
2,150,512
(18,565,784)

(128,222,864)

$ 171,502,007



City of Mesquite, Texas

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Quiality of Life Other Total
Housing Corporation Bond Governmental Governmental
General Grants (4B Sales Tax) Finance Funds Funds
REVENUES:
Taxes-
Ad valorem $ 40,570,925 $ - $ - $ - % - $ 40,570,925
Gross receipts 7,541,084 - - - 75,965 7,617,049
Sales 24,238,633 - 8,015,837 - 1,093,137 33,347,607
Licenses and permits 1,105,976 - - - 1,540 1,107,516
Fines and forfeitures 2,598,144 - - - 802,762 3,400,906
Investment income 495,387 37,623 163,262 490,578 233,920 1,420,770
Charges for services 11,201,563 - - 88,538 5,814,049 17,104,150
Intergovernmental 720,855 9,723,402 - - 1,784,674 12,228,931
Contributions and donations 147,812 - 59,117 - 89,822 296,751
Other revenues 784,210 57,064 - 1,200 291,911 1,134,385
Total Revenues 89,404,589 9,818,089 8,238,216 580,316 10,187,780 118,228,990
EXPENDITURES:
Current-
General government 10,296,422 - 40,000 207,889 4,487,393 15,031,704
Fire services 23,824,530 - - 46,764 117,814 23,989,108
Police services 29,464,417 - - - 819,947 30,284,364
Field services 9,699,858 - - 436,575 - 10,136,433
Public works 2,792,583 - 321 - 6,622 2,799,526
Community development 2,583,926 - - - 849,875 3,433,801
Library services 1,882,758 - - 44,838 21,097 1,948,693
Parks and recreation 7,448,909 - 4,622,354 - 50,523 12,121,786
Housing and community services 1,905,700 11,587,196 - - 495,904 13,988,800
Capital outlay - - 8,016,461 11,172,668 1,029,229 20,218,358
Debt service
Principal - - - - 8,122,664 8,122,664
Interest and fiscal charges - - - - 4,353,658 4,353,658
Bond issuance costs 22,380 - - 268,270 - 290,650
Total Expenditures 89,921,483 11,587,196 12,679,136 12,177,004 20,354,726 146,719,545
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES (516,894)  (1,769,107) _ (4,440,920) (11,596,688)  (10,166,946) (28,490,555)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 8,394,261 - - 12 12,180,778 20,575,051
Transfers out (9,146,175) (150,000)  (1,358,943) (551,622) (4,623,012) (15,829,752)
Issuance of debt 1,865,000 - - 11,260,000 - 13,125,000
Issuance of refunding debt - - - 4,245,000 - 4,245,000
Payment to refunding bond agent - - - (4,203,625) - (4,203,625)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,113,086 (150,000)  (1,358,943) 10,749,765 7,557,766 17,911,674
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 596,192 (1,919,107)  (5,799,863) (846,923) (2,609,180) (10,578,881)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 17,363,474 3,115,196 10,122,806 22,808,537 18,270,207 71,680,220
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 17,959,666 $ 1,196,089 $ 4,322,943 $ 21,961,614 $ 15,661,027 $ 61,101,339

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

To the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:
Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds
All payments for other post employment benefits for the year are recorded as

expenditures. However, in the government-wide statement of activities only the
actuarially required contribution is considered expense. Any excess payment is

recorded as an asset. Change in net other post employment benefits (OPEB) asset,

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital outlay expenditures
Depreciation expense

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds. This
adjustment is to recognize contributions of capital assets by developers.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds. This
adjustment is to recognize the net change in deferred revenues.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bond proceeds) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also govern-
mental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and
similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred
and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Principal amount of debt issued

Refunded bond debt amortization

Principal amount of debt payed to bondholders

Principal amount of capital lease paid

Principal amount of notes paid

Net change in accrued interest payable

Net deferred offering costs and related debt issuance items

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. This adjustment is to reflect the net change in accrued
compensated absences.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of health

claims and general liability to individual funds. The net expenses of certain
activities of internal service funds is reported within governmental activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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21,038,999
(11,001,932)

(17,370,000)

(98,264)
11,670,000
48,225
454,361

(4,935)
386,231

$ (10,578,881)

935,853

10,037,067

1,236,451

113,309

(4,914,382)

(287,750)

229,463

$ (3228870



City of Mesquite, Texas

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes-
Ad valorem $ 40,568,000 $ 40,485,000 $ 40,570,925 $ 85,925
Gross receipts 7,653,100 7,583,500 7,541,084 (42,416)
Sales 25,400,000 24,390,000 24,238,633 (151,367)
Licenses and permits 1,254,530 1,113,900 1,105,976 (7,924)
Fines and forfeitures 2,542,500 2,601,500 2,598,144 (3,356)
Investment income 1,070,000 580,000 495,387 (84,613)
Charges for services 11,450,950 11,158,375 11,201,563 43,188
Intergovernmental 842,154 791,900 720,855 (71,045)
Contributions and donations 298,600 147,000 147,812 812
Other revenues 936,066 713,500 784,210 70,710
TOTAL REVENUES 92,015,900 89,564,675 89,404,589 (160,086)
EXPENDITURES:
General government 11,102,343 10,896,014 10,296,422 599,592
Fire services 22,768,148 24,564,930 23,824,530 740,400
Police services 30,598,750 29,042,717 29,464,417 (421,700)
Field services 10,256,954 9,878,263 9,699,858 178,405
Public works 2,901,322 2,747,439 2,792,583 (45,144)
Community development 3,061,613 2,654,733 2,583,926 70,807
Library services 2,043,116 1,914,876 1,882,758 32,118
Parks and recreation 7,244,384 6,929,188 7,448,909 (519,721)
Housing and community services 1,821,394 1,849,168 1,905,700 (56,532)
Debt service:
Bond issuance costs 80,000 19,500 22,380 (2,880)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 91,878,024 90,496,828 89,921,483 575,345
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 137,876 (932,153) (516,894) 415,259
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 7,815,000 8,745,165 8,394,261 (350,904)
Transfers out (9,793,954) (9,655,570) (9,146,175) 509,395
Issuance of debt 1,845,000 1,865,000 1,865,000 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES) (133,954) 954,595 1,113,086 158,491
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 3922 $ 22,442 596,192 $ 573,750
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 17,363,474
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 17,959,666

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Housing Grants Special Revenue Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

REVENUES:
Investment income
Intergovernmental
Other revenues

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Current-
Housing and community services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER
FINANCING USES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 37,623 $ (12,377)
10,353,077 11,346,842 9,723,402 (1,623,440)
22,000 25,636 57,064 31,428
10,425,077 11,422,478 9,818,089 (1,604,389)
10,275,077 11,272,478 11,587,196 (314,718)
10,275,077 11,272,478 11,587,196 (314,718)
150,000 150,000 (1,769,107) (1,919,107)
(150,000) (150,000) (150,000) -
(150,000) (150,000) (150,000) -
$ - $ - (1,919,107) $ (1,919,107)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Mesquite Quality of Life Corporation (4B Sales Tax) Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Sales tax $ 8,400,000 8,066,600 $ 8,015,837 (50,763)
Investment income 500,000 350,000 163,262 (186,738)
Contributions and donations 1,180,000 1,136,700 59,117 (1,077,583)
TOTAL REVENUES 10,080,000 9,553,300 8,238,216 (1,315,084)
EXPENDITURES:
Current-
General government 40,000 40,000 40,000 -
Public works - - 321 (321)
Parks and recreation 3,077,106 3,077,106 4,622,354 (1,545,248)

Capital Projects
Public safety projects 478,956 478,844 28,655 450,189

Transportation projects 9,549,192 12,426,090 7,698,895 4,727,195
Parks and recreation projects 7,683,923 7,762,926 288,911 7,474,015
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 20,829,177 23,784,966 12,679,136 11,105,830
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER
EXPENDITURES (10,749,177)  (14,231,666) (4,440,920) 9,790,746
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out - - (1,358,943) (1,358,943)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES - - (1,358,943) (1,358,943)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (10,749,177) $ (14,231,666) (5,799,863) $ 8,431,803

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 10,122,806

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 4,322,943

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2009

ASSETS:
Current assets:

Pooled cash and investments

Restricted pooled cash and investments
Restricted accrued interest

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Inventory

Prepaids and other assets

Accrued interest

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Revenue bond reserve-
Pooled cash and investments
Capital assets-
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation)
Total noncurrent assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Estimated claims payable

Due to other funds

Deposits and other liabilities
Capital lease payable

Accrued compensated absences

Total current liabilities

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:

Accounts payable

Accrued interest payable

Bonds payable
Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Estimated claims payable
Capital lease payable

Bonds payable

Accrued compensated absences

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total Liabilities

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Major Funds Non-Major Fund Governmental
Drainage Activities-
Water and Utility Municipal Internal Service
Sewer District Airport Totals Funds
$ 9505322 $ 1,480,385 $ 100 $ 10,985,807 $ 3,621,079
23,249,038 385,962 12,985 23,647,985 -
7,497 - - 7,497 -
6,126,611 143,257 81,804 6,351,672 -
344,850 - 28,780 373,630 -
1,085,396 62,604 - 1,148,000 320,722
18,042 2,099 - 20,141 2,499
40,336,756 2,074,307 123,669 42,534,732 3,944,300
283,675 689,779 - 973,454 -
8,898,347 2,041,425 7,158,300 18,098,072 -
118,903,740 27,493,353 8,885,906 155,282,999 -
128,085,762 30,224,557 16,044,206 174,354,525 -
168,422,518 32,298,864 16,167,875 216,889,257 3,944,300
1,182,594 25,256 13,234 1,221,084 649,277
- - - - 1,291,963
- - 167,105 167,105 -
3,306,129 1,056 26,610 3,333,795 -
38,965 - - 38,965 -
226,397 31,635 - 258,032 -
4,754,085 57,947 206,949 5,018,981 1,941,240
1,406,714 - - 1,406,714 -
233,186 24,477 - 257,663 -
4,205,000 920,000 - 5,125,000 -
5,844,900 944,477 - 6,789,377 -
10,598,985 1,002,424 206,949 11,808,358 1,941,240
- - - - 693,926
48,455 - - 48,455 -
62,995,285 5,847,219 - 68,842,504 -
844,311 87,747 46,761 978,819 -
63,888,051 5,934,966 46,761 69,869,778 693,926
74,487,036 6,937,390 253,710 81,678,136 2,635,166
80,058,666 22,767,559 16,044,205 118,870,430 -
2,334,685 1,051,264 - 3,385,949 -
11,542,131 1,542,651 (130,040) 12,954,742 1,309,134
$ 93935482 $ 25,361,474 $ 15,914,165 $ 135,211,121 $ 1,309,134

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service funds

activities related to enterprise funds

Total Net Assets for Business Type Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Major Funds Non-Major Fund Governmental
Drainage Activities-
Water and Utility Municipal Internal Service
Sewer District Airport Totals Funds
Operating revenues:
Customer charges $ 35,713630 $ 2,170,494 $ 1,253,935 $ 39,138,059 $ -
Contributions - City - - - - 11,228,234
Contributions - other - - - - 3,388,451
Other Revenues - - 82,148 82,148 -
Total operating revenues 35,713,630 2,170,494 1,336,083 39,220,207 14,616,685
Operating expenses:
Personal services 5,389,498 490,363 261,964 6,141,825 -
Supplies 843,657 13,897 654,735 1,512,289 -
Contractual services 20,424,559 169,002 245,511 20,839,072 14,430,747
Depreciation 3,756,755 688,740 439,784 4,885,279 -
Total operating expenses 30,414,469 1,362,002 1,601,994 33,378,465 14,430,747
Operating income (loss) 5,299,161 808,492 (265,911) 5,841,742 185,938
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income 619,246 48,646 - 667,892 46,201
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 11,511 - - 11,511 -
Interest expense (2,732,399) (320,209) - (3,052,608) -
Other nonoperating expenses (149,192) (31,785) - (180,977) -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (2,250,834) (303,348) - (2,554,182) 46,201
Income (loss) before contributions
and transfers 3,048,327 505,144 (265,911) 3,287,560 232,139
Capital contributions 3,110,062 - 2,542,914 5,652,976 -
Transfers out (4,573,495) - (171,804) (4,745,299) -
Change in net assets 1,584,894 505,144 2,105,199 4,195,237 232,139
Total net assets - beginning as restated 92,350,588 24,856,330 13,808,966 1,076,995
Total net assets - ending $ 093935482 $ 25,361,474 $ 15,914,165 $ 1,309,134

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service funds

activities related to enterprise funds (134,743)
Change in net assets of business-type activities $ 4,060,494

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers
Cash received from City funds
Cash received from other operating sources
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services
Cash paid to claimants

Net cash provided by operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers out to other funds
Net cash used for
noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the sale of revenue bonds
Premium from the sale of revenue bonds
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on revenue bond maturities
Interest paid on revenue bonds
Principal paid on capital lease obligation

Bond issuance costs and other debt related expense

Net cash used for capital
and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN POOLED CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS

POOLED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

POOLED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Major Funds Non-Major Fund Governmental
Drainage Activities-
Water and Utility Municipal Internal Service
Sewer District Airport Totals Funds
$ 35777616 $ 2,159,930 $ 1,330,901 $ 39,268,447 $ -
- - - - 11,228,234
- - - - 3,388,451
(21,209,615) (183,075) (895,091) (22,287,781) (4,241,608)
(5,364,631) (476,192) (258,407) (6,099,230) -
- - - - (10,349,425)
9,203,370 1,500,663 177,403 10,881,436 25,652
(4,573,495) - (171,804) (4,745,299) -
(4,573,495) - (171,804) (4,745,299) -
8,380,000 - - 8,380,000 -
24,531 - - 24,531 -
11,511 - - 11,511 -
(5,112,777) (394,258) (5,599) (5,512,634) -
(3,740,000) (885,000) - (4,625,000) -
(2,717,645) (322,702) - (3,040,347) -
(68,225) - - (68,225) -
(199,500) - - (199,500) -
(3,422,105) (1,601,960) (5,599) (5,029,664) -
669,272 53,425 - 722,697 52,898
669,272 53,425 - 722,697 52,898
1,877,042 (47,872) - 1,829,170 78,550
31,160,993 2,603,998 13,085 33,778,076 3,542,529
$ 33,038,035 $ 2,556,126 $ 13,085 $ 35,607,246 $ 3,621,079

(Continued on following page)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by (used for) operating activities-
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities-
(Increase)decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase)decrease in inventory
(Increase)decrease in prepaid items
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase(decrease) in estimated claims payable
Increase(decrease) in deposits
Increase(decrease) in accrued compensated
absences

Total adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

NONCASH CAPITAL ACTIVITIES:
Contribution of capital assets from developers
Contribution of capital assets from government

Total noncash capital activities

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Major Funds Non-Major Fund Governmental
Drainage Activities-

Water and Utility Municipal Internal Service
Sewer District Airport Totals Funds

$ 5299161 $ 808,492 $ (265911) $ 5841742 $ 185,938

3,756,755 688,740 439,784 4,885,279 -

(25,371) (10,564) (72,861) (108,796) -

(11,014) - 49,457 38,443 -

(800) (259) - (1,059) 290,082

78,597 1,701 (42,773) 37,525 (52,816)

- - - - (397,552)

102,563 - 67,678 170,241 -

3,479 12,553 2,029 18,061 -

3,904,209 692,171 443,314 5,039,694 (160,286)

$ 9,203,370 $ 1,500,663 $ 177,403 $ 10,881,436 $ 25,652

$ 3,110,062 $ - $ - $ 3,110,062 $ -

- - 2,542,914 2,542,914 -

$ 3,110,062 $ - $ 2542914 $ 5,652,976 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Fiduciary Fund
September 30, 2009

Agency Fund
Tax
Clearing
Fund
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Pooled cash and investments $ 185,056
Taxes receivable levied for other government
(net of allowance for uncollectibles) 4,199,892
Total Assets $ 4,384,948
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 185,056
Due to other governments 4,199,892
Total Liabilities $ 4,384,948

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Notesto Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2009

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Mesquite, Texas (the "City") was incorgted on December 3, 1887. It has been a home rule
charter city since August 1953, pursuant to Artile Section 5 of the State Constitution. The Gipjerates
under a Council-Manager form of government and idless the following services as authorized by its
charter: public safety, public services, cultuegreation, and community development.

The financial statements of the City have been gmexp to conform to generally accepted accounting
principles ("GAAP") as applicable to state and lagavernments. The Governmental Accounting Starslard
Board ("GASB") is the accepted standard-settingydod establishing governmental accounting andrianal
reporting principles. Private-sector standardsaabanting and financial reporting issued prior tecBmber

1, 1989, generally are followed in both the govesntawide and proprietary fund financial statemeatthe
extent that those standards do not conflict withcontradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the optifmll@ving subsequent private-sector guidancethair
business-type activities and enterprise funds,estilip this same limitation. The City has elected to
follow subsequent private-sector guidance. The nsigmificant accounting and reporting policies and
practices used by the City are described below:

Reporting EntityThe City is a municipal corporation governed byetetted mayor and six-memb@ouncil.

As required by GAAP, these financial statementssgme the City (the primary government) and its
component units, entities for which the City is siolered to be financially accountable. Blended coment
units, although legally separate entities areuimsgance, part of the City's operations and so fdata these
units are combined with data of the primary govesnin

The Quality of Life Corporation (the "CorporatiomB Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund is presented as
"blended" fund in the financial statements. Thepdoation is administered by a seven-member CitynCibu
appointed board of directors which are removablaheyCity Council at any time without cause. No enor
than four of the seven directors may be City Cdumeimbers or City of Mesquite employees. Preseatly,
members of the Board are residents who are nettigrCouncil members nor City employees. The puepos
of the Corporation is to study and fund permissiiejects for public safety, transportation or [sagnd
recreation purposes from a one-half of one pergeneral sales tax. The Corporation's activitiessatgect
to Council approval and are for the exclusive bera#fthe City. In this respect, the Corporatiorisaas a
financing authority to obtain resources for thejgets. When the project is completed the capitaétssare
owned by the City not the Corporation. Completaficial statements for the Quality of Life Corpavatare
available upon request from the City.

Included in the financial statements are the d@tiwiof other legally separate entities whose \emjted
activities have been combined in various governaiduinds for financial statement presentation pseso
These include two Tax Increment Financing Distrigtich provide for public improvements within these
districts, the Mesquite Cemetery Board which presidunds to maintain a small cemetery within thg, ci
Historic Mesquite, Inc. which provides funding t@imtain historical sites within the city, the MegquArts
Council which provides funding for arts and cultue the Mesquite Art Center, and Keep Mesquite
Beautiful, Inc. which provides funding for local daification projects within the city. The City e® not
have a majority position on these boards, howeher City does have the ability to influence theafinial
decisions of these groups in that City Council éexd and approves the annual budgets of theseeantitihe
activity of these entities is almost entirely fbetbenefit of the City as well. Separate finanstatements for
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these entities are not available. Also includedhim financial statements are the operating aEs/iof the
Mesquite Housing Finance Corporation, the Mesqtialth Facilities Corporation, and the Mesquite
Industrial Development Corporation which providevgges almost entirely to the primary governmetrite3e
corporations have substantively the same goverpotly as the City. The issuance of conduit debtter
corporations is discussed in Note 12. Separataéial statements for these entities are not éaila

Government-Wide Financial Statement3-he government-wide financial statements (i.e., dtaement of
net assets and the statement of activities) repfotmation on all of the nonfiduciary activitied the
reporting entity. These statements are designeprdeide readers with a broad overview of the City's
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sectitess. The effect of interfund activity has beemoved
from these statements with the exception of sonhécieemaintenance charges and management informatio
services provided to user departments. Governmewtalities, which are partially supported by taxesl
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separfutaty business-type activities, which rely to andligant
extent on fees and charges for support. The stateofienet assets presents information on all ofGlitg's
assets and liabilities, with the difference betwé®mn two reported as "net assets". Over time, asgs or
decreases in net assets may serve as a usefuhtordinf whether the financial position of the Cay
Mesquite is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents informatioomghg how the City's net assets changed durindisical
year. This statement also demonstrates the degrekith the direct expenses of a given activityaifeet by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those thallearly identifiable with a specific function activity.
Program revenues include (1) charges to customexpmicants who purchase, use, or directly beffiefin
goods, services, or privileges provided by a gifesrction or activity and (2) grants and contribusahat are
restricted to meeting the operational or capitguireements of a particular function. Taxes and ioitieens not
properly included among program revenues are reganstead as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements-Fund financial statements are provided for govemmtal funds, proprietary
funds and fiduciary funds, even though the lattez axcluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds anajor individual enterprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statemehitsnon-major funds are aggregated and presenteal in
single column. A fund is a grouping of related aecus that is used to maintain control over resaitbat
have been segregated for specific activities oeaihjes. The City of Mesquite, like other local gavments,
uses fund accounting to aid financial managemethid@monstrate legal compliance.

Governmental funds are used to account for esdlgritia same functions reported as governmentliies

in the government-wide financial statements. Howewualike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on-texan inflows and outflows of spendable resourees,
well as on balances of spendable resources awaitdithe end of the fiscal year. Such informatiay rhe
useful in evaluating a government's near-term ftir@anrequirements.

The City of Mesquite maintains ten individual gaweental funds. Information is presented separateiie
governmental fund balance sheet and in the govartahéund statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances for the General, Grargsi&ipRevenue, Mesquite Quality of Life (4B Sales)r
Special Revenue and Bond Finance Capital Projecidst all of which are considered to be major fuds
budgetary comparison statement has also been pobfid the General, Grants Special Revenue, andBhe
Sales Tax Special Revenue fund in the basic fimhstatements. Data from the other six governmdutals
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are combined into a single, aggregated presentatiwividual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of conmiy statements elsewhere in this report. Budgetar
comparison schedules follow these combining statésnéor those nonmajor funds, which adopt annual
budgets.

Proprietary funds are maintained for enterprise iaternal service operations of the City. Entemprisnds
are used to report the same functions presentbdisisess-type activities in the government-widaviicial
statements. The Water and Sewer and the Drainality District funds are considered to be majorerptise
funds and the Municipal Airport is presented inepagate column as the only non-major proprietandfu
Internal service funds are an accounting devicel iseaccumulate and allocate costs internally antbeg
City's various functions. The City uses internalvee funds to account for its health claims andegal
liability operations. Because both of these ses/medominately benefit governmental rather thaginass-
type functions, they have been included within gomeental activities in the government-wide finahcia
statements. Both internal service funds are conchimi® a single, aggregated presentation in therjgtary
fund financial statements. Individual fund data tbe internal service funds is provided in the foom
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resoureds for the benefit of parties outside the govemmé&he
resources of these funds are not reflected in tvergment-wide financial statements because theyar
available to support the City's own programs. Tlitg @ports only one fiduciary fund, an agency fursgd

to account for ad valorem taxes collected on bebé&lthe Mesquite Independent School District. The
fiduciary fund, an agency fund, applies the acchaalis of accounting but has no measurement focus.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accountinfhe government-wide financial statements are tegoising

the economic resources measurement focus and theahdasis of accounting, as are the proprietang f
statements. Revenues are recorded when earnedxpedses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows pRrty taxes are recognized as revenues in thefgeathich

they are levied. Grants and similar items are reizegl as revenue as soon as all eligibility reqoeets
imposed by the provider have been met. With thenecic resources measurement focus, all assets and
liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) areagdpd on the statement of net assets.

Governmental fund financial statements are repargag the current financial resources measurefoent
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Regsrare recognized as soon as they are both mblkesura
and available. "Measurable" means the amount ofrtresaction can be determined, and "available"nsiea
collectible within the current period or soon enoubereafter to be used to pay liabilities of therent
period. For this purpose, the City considers reesria be available if they are collected withindé@s of the
fiscal year-end except investment income, whiche@rded as earned. Expenditures are generallydedo
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual actimg. However, accrued interest on long-term dabwvell

as expenditures related to compensated absence=xcarded only when the payment is due.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual in goverrahamtds are ad valorem taxes, gross receipts (gates
taxes, interest earned, certain charges for sexvioal intergovernmental revenues, if such reveargeedoth
measurable and available as previously definecerises and permits, and charges for services refated
paving assessments and ambulance service billikgseaognized when payment is received. The deferre
revenues account is utilized in governmental futasecord earned amounts, which are unavailable to
liquidate liabilities of the current period (i. @gt collectible within 60 days).
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues expenses from nonoperating items. Operating te&n
and expenses generally result from providing ses/end producing and delivering goods in conneatim

a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operatiohbe principal operating revenues of the City's wated
sewer, drainage utility and other proprietary opers are charges to customers for sales and ssrvic
Operating expenses for the enterprise funds aedniat service funds include the cost of sales andces,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on dagstets. All revenues and expenses that do nat timiee
definition are reported as nonoperating revenudsapenses.

The City of Mesquite reports the following majorvgonmental funds:

The General fund is the general operating fundhef City. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted émother fund.

The Housing Grants special revenue fund is useactount for funds awarded the City by the U. S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUDKder their housing assistance program
(HAP).

The Quality of Life (4B Sales Tax) special reverfund is used to account for funds received from a
one-half of one percent general sales tax, whichbeautilized for public safety, transportation parks
and recreation purposes.

The Bond Finance capital project fund is use@doount for financial resources generated primarily
from bond proceeds to be expended for various a@apibjects. The individual projects are budgeted
over the life of the project and not on an annaaisy therefore, budgetary data for these funde hav
been presented in the financial statements.

The City of Mesquite reports the following majooprietary funds:

The Water and Sewer enterprise fund is useddouat for the rendering of water and sewer services
the residents and businesses of the City. All aBigts/necessary to provide such services are atedun
for in this fund, including administration, opemtj maintenance, debt service, and billing and
collecting.

The Drainage Utility District enterprise fund used to account for those expenditures incurred as
result of the federally mandated National PollutBigcharge Elimination System ("NPDES") permit
program. This federal program requires the Citgdacate the general public about pollutants anid the
presence in stormwater runoff; adopt a compreherstiorm water ordinance; operate a street sweeping
program; design, establish and review stormwatamege improvements; and monitor storm water
quality. Funding for the District is from monthlyrainage charges to commercial and residential
customers, revenue bond proceeds and intereshgarni

Additionally, the City of Mesquite reports the fming fiduciary fund:

An agency fund is used to account for ad valotaxas collected on behalf of the Mesquite Independe
School District.
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Budgetary Data-Budgets are a plan of financial operation provgdam estimate of proposed expenditures for
a given period and the proposed means of finartbiaig. The budgetary process begins with City depant
heads (or, in the case of the Quality of Life Cogpion, its Board of Directors) developing expendit
budget requests and revenue estimates in Aprithi®ifiscal year beginning the following OctoberThese
requests and estimates are then submitted to tiyeMzinager for review and input. As required byyCit
Charter, the City Manager is to have prepared anaroperating budget by August 15 for the Gen&aht
Service and certain budgeted Special Revenue furus.proposed budget is then presented to the City
Council for its consideration and adoption thropgissage of an ordinance.

Between the time the budget is made available ¢opthiblic and the time it is legally adopted, theyCi
Council provides for several public hearings tohgatinput from the public. During the public hegsn
citizens are encouraged to offer their suggestamtsideas of what programs they would like to lmuided

(or not included) in the budget. During the pregaraof the 2008-2009 budget, the City Council aactdd
three public hearings and held numerous work sessio an effort to obtain as much citizen input as
possible. The adopted budget is reassessed bytahepds midway through the fiscal year and revemee a
expenditure projections are revised. The City Ma&andaben presents these revisions to the City Codoici
adoption, resulting in what is termed an amendeatfjets While infrequent, the City Council may amehe
budget prior to or after this mid-year review. Adlvisions to the budget, however, must be adopted b
ordinance. Unexpended appropriations lapse atl fygea-end.

In 2008-2009 the City Council amended the budgéflay and again in September. Individual amendments
were not material in relation to the original appiations. The City Manager is authorized to transf
budgeted amounts between departments within any; faowever, any revisions that would increase total
fund appropriations must be approved by the Cityri@d. Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted
appropriations at the fund level.

Budgets for the General, Debt Service, and th@viellg special revenue funds: Housing Grants, Qualit
Life Corporation, Hotel/Motel, and Confiscated Draig legally adopted on a basis consistent with 8/A#A
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accorlyinthe budgetary comparison statements and sceedul
present actual expenditures on a basis consisidnthve legally adopted budgets as amended. Cdpitgéct
funds are budgeted over the life of the project moidon an annual basis; therefore, budgetary fdatdhese
funds have not been presented in the financisdsimts.

Encumbrances-An encumbrance system is maintained in governmduatals to account for commitments
resulting from approved purchase orders, contramtxther forms of legal commitments. Encumbrances
outstanding at year-end are reported as resergatibfund balances and do not constitute experesitor
liabilities because the commitments will be honadadng the subsequent year.

Pooled Cash and Investment§&ash balances of all City funds, excluding theoaats payabl@account and
payroll clearing account are pooled into one bactoant in order to maximize investment opportusitie
Negative balances, if applicable, incurred in pdalash at year-end are treated as interfund rddewaf the
General Fund and interfund payables of the ddficitl.

Investments purchased with pooled cash are cledsifs pooled cash and investments in the accommaanyi

balance sheet and statement of net assets. Eafrongshese investments are allocated monthly o éand
based on each fund's relative month-end cash ardtiment balance, except for the debt service fwhith
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is allocated to the General Fund. Investments ecerded at cost, and at fiscal year-end investmeitks
original maturity greater than one year are refidcat fair value on the accompanying balance shieet
statement of net assets.

The relationship of an individual fund to the pableash and investments account is essentiallyahat
demand deposit account. Individual funds can wihdcash from the account as needed, and therefore a
equity that the fund has in the pooled cash andstments account is highly liquid. For the purpokéhe
accompanying statement of cash flows, the Citydmasen to reconcile to "pooled cash and investniesds

all investments of the funds are regarded as casivadents. Deposit and investment risk disclosue in
accordance with GASB Statement No.B&posit and I nvestment Risk Disclosures.

Interfund Receivables and PayableShort-term amounts owed between funds are cladsifs "Dudo/from
other funds" in the fund financial statements. @& government-wide statement of net assets, payabie
receivables within governmental and business-typieviaes are eliminated and balances between these
activities are reported on a single line entitledérnal balances."

Inventory- Inventory is valued at cost using the first-in ivstfout ("FIFO") method. Inventories are
maintained on a perpetual inventory system andsaugnts are made at fiscal year-end based upon a
physical count. Inventory consists of expendablppBes held for consumption and are recorded as an
expenditure upon consumption in governmental funds.

Prepaid Items-Payments made to vendors for services that wilebeperiods beyond September 2009,
are recorded as prepaid items in both the goverhmiele and fund financial statements. Prepaid itames
accounted for on the consumption basis in govertahé&imds.

Restricted AssetsProceeds of Water and Sewer Fund and DrainageyUdistrict Fund revenud&onds, as
well as certain resources set aside for their neygay, are classified as both current and noncuassgts in
the City's financial accounting system because tes is limited by applicable bond covenants. Wheth
restricted and unrestricted resources are avaifablese, it is the City's policy to use restrictedources
first, and then unrestricted resources as theyesded.

Capital Assets-Capital assets, which includes land, right-of-whyildings, infrastructure, improvements,
equipmentand construction in progress, are reported in tpgli@able governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financsghtements and in the fund financial statements fo
proprietary funds. All capital assets are recoralehistorical cost or estimated historical costn&ted capital
assets are valued at their fair market value ondéte donated. Repairs and maintenance are recasled
expenses. Renewals and betterments are capitaltagdstruction in progress is not depreciated uhgl
assets are placed into service. Interest hasewt bapitalized during the construction periodpiaprietary
capital assets as such amounts are not material.

The City’s capitalization policy requires that asseapitalized have an original cost of $5,000 orearand a
useful life of at least five years. Depreciatiors fieeen calculated on each class of depreciablegyopsing
the straight-line method. Estimated useful livesas follows:

Buildings 25 - 50 years
Infrastructure/improvements 15 - 50 years
Equipment 5-20 years
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Estimated Claims PayableProperty, general liability, and workers' compéiosainsurance coverages
accounted for in the General Liability Fund, aremntl service fund. At year-end, the estimatedeseént
value of claims reported and of claims incurred baot reported in excess of liability insurance tsnis
classified as estimated claims payable. Group h@adurance is accounted for in the Health Claimnsd; an
internal service fund. At year-end, an estimateigbaid claims that were incurred prior to Septen8r
2009 is accrued based on past claims experience.

Accrued Compensated Absencdzity employees earn vacation and sick leave igimgramountsVacation
leave accrues for employees with less than fivesyefservice at the annual rate of 10 working dajson
attaining five years of service, an additional fwerking days are awarded annually until 15 yedrseovice
when vacation leave is earned at an annual ra@® dfays. Employees with over 25 service years ac2tu
days annually. Any employee leaving the City in dj@tanding following one year of continuous senige
paid for accumulated vacation leave not to exce@dv@rking days at their current pay rate. Sick &av
accrues at an annual rate of 15 working days. UWpomination, unused accumulated sick leave is paid
employees with three to five years of service a-third, employees with five to six years of seevat two-
thirds, and six years and over is paid all accutedlaick leave up to a maximum of 90 days. Police a
firemen are reimbursed upon termination for allsediaccumulated sick leave up to the maximum afe§@
no matter how long they were employed by the Gityemjuired by State Civil Service law.

The measurement of the liability for compensateseabes was determined by applying a vesting method
approach to accumulated vacation and sick leavenbas at fiscal year-end and includes additionarsa
related payments for Social Security, Medicare, egtitement contributions, in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 16Accounting for Compensated Absences. No liability is recorded in the fund statements o
governmental funds unless they have matured, amgrayof this liability will not be made with expeatale
available financial resources unless an employsddraninated employment as of the end of a fiseatyin

the government-wide financial statements and petgmy fund statements, the liability for employegth

over 20 years of service is recorded as a curiabtlity as these employees are eligible for reteat
regardless of their age.

Long-Term Debt-In the government-wide financial statements aral fimd level proprietary financial
statements, long-term debt is reported as liagdiin the applicable governmental activities, bessatype
activities, or proprietary fund type statement ef assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as wedsaance
costs, are deferred and amortized using the interethod over the life of the bonds. In the funtaficial
statements, governmental funds recognize bond prasmand discounts, as well as bond issuance cests a
expenditures, during the current period. The famewnt of debt issued is recorded as other finansmugces.
Issuance costs are reported as expenditures farts receiving the bond proceeds.

Net Assetsin the government-wide financial statements amdftimd level proprietary financial statements,
net assets represent the difference between aasdtdiabilities. The net assets are reported irehr
components (1) invested in capital assets, neelated debt, (2) restricted, and (3) unrestrictéet assets
invested in capital assets, net of related debsists of capital assets, net of accumulated dexdieni
reduced by the outstanding balances of any borgwsed for the acquisition, construction or improeat

of those assets, and adding back unspent procBetisassets are reported as restricted when there ar
limitations imposed on their use either through #mabling legislations adopted by the City or tigltou
external restrictions imposed by creditors, gratorlaws or regulations of other governments.
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New Accounting Pronouncement$sASB has issued Statement No.Actounting and Financial Reporting
for Intangible Assets (“GASB 51”), which is effective for the City in ftsl year 2010. GASB 51 requires that
all intangible assets not specifically excludeditsyscope provisions be classified as capital assétis
statement also provides authoritative guidancegpetifically addresses the nature of these intdmgissets.

GASB has issued Statement No./A&ounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments (“GASB

53"), which is effective for the City in fiscal ye2010. GASB 53 is intended to improve how staie l@cal
governments report information about derivativetrimaents in their financial statements. The Statgm
specifically requires governments to measure mesivative instruments at fair value in their finalc
statements that are prepared using the economininees measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting.

GASB has issued Statement No. Bdnd Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions
(“GASB 53”), which is effective for the City in ftal year 2011. GASB 54 is intended to improve the
usefulness of information provided to financial sgpusers about fund balance by providing cleareste
structured fund balance classifications, and bgifglag the definitions of existing governmentahfiitypes.

GASB has issued Statement No. B Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and
Local Governments (“GASB 55"), which was effective for the City instal year 2009. GASB 55
incorporates the hierarchy of generally acceptedoaating principles (GAAP) for state and local
governments into the GASB’s authoritative literaturlt is intended to make it easier for prepacdrstate
and local government financial statements to iderand apply the “GAAP hierarchy,” which consists o
sources of accounting principles used in the padjmar of financial statements so that they areeqmes in
conformity with generally accepted accounting ppres (GAAP) and the framework for selecting those
principles.

GASB has issued Statement No.Gdlification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained
in the AICPA Satements on Auditing Sandards (“GASB 56"), which was effective for the City insftal year
2009. GASB 56 incorporates accounting and findrrelporting guidance previously only contained e t
American Institute of Certified Public AccountaitdCPA) auditing literature into the GASB’s accoimngt
and financial reporting literature for state anchlogovernments.

GASB has issued Statement No. GPEB Measurement by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer
Plans (“GASB 57”), which was effective for the City instal year 2009. GASB 57 addresses issues related
to measurement of OPEB obligations by certain eygyk participating in agent multiple-employer OPEB
plans.

GASB has issued Statement No.Ag€ounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9 Bankruptcies (“GASB
58"), which is effective for the City in fiscal ye2010. GASB 58 provides guidance for governméimas
have petitioned for protection from creditors blynfj for bankruptcy under Chapter 9 of the Unitedt&s
Bankruptcy Code.

Management has not yet determined the impact orfitaacial statements of the statements effective i
future years.
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2. DEPOSITSAND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool¢batbines cash of the various funds in order to meea
investment opportunities. The amounts reflectedowelinclude the revenue bond reserve cash and
investments reflected on the government-wide angntary fund financial statements of net assets.

Deposits

At September 30, 2009, the carrying amount of titg'sCdemand deposits was $(2,460,888) and the bank
balance was $1,345,346. The demand deposits leafanthe blended component units was $93,466.h Cas
on hand for the City was $15,200. The carryingigadf the City’s investment annuity was $434,32%e

remaining cash balance of $6,167 represents acdntecest received at purchase and a recreatiom cas
clearing account.

Investments
The City's investments at September 30, 2009, are:

Weighted Average
Investment type Fair Value Maturity (Years)

Managed Pools:

Texpool $26,723,548 0.00074

Texstar 14,753,821 0.00041
Money Market:

Fidelity Investments 3,575,476 0.00010
US Agency Notes 53,642,261 0.79050
Total $98,695,107 0.79175

Interest Rate Risk. As a meansf limiting its exposure to fair value losses argsirom increasing interest
rates, the City’s investment policy establishespbefolio’s maximum average dollar-weighted matuto no
more than one year. By policy, the City will natetttly invest in securities maturing more tharethyears
from the date of purchase.

Credit Risk. The City’s investment policy, in conjunction wittage law, specifies the type of credit rating of
all authorized investments. The City’s investment$).S. Agency securities (FHLB and FFCB) are date
AAA by Standard and Poor’'s and Aaa by Moody’s Iriggs Service at the date of purchase. The investm
in Texas Local Government Pools (Texpool and Texstarried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and
Poor’s as of September 30, 2009. The City’'s imaests in Fidelity Money Market funds carried a dred
rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor’s and Aaa byollgs Investor's Service as of September 30, 2009.

Concentration of Credit Risk. With the exception of U.S. Treasury securitibg City’s investment policy
limits the amount that may be invested in any srggcurity type to 85% of the total investment fotid.
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As of September 30, 2009, the City's total investtaeare in the following: Agency issues (54.4%)
consisting of FHLB (40.6%) and FFCB (13.8%), invesht pools (42.0%), and money market funds (3.6%).

Custodial Credit Risk. Pursuant to provisions of both the Texas Publinds Investment Act and the Public
Funds Investment Policy of the City, all depositsthe City that exceed the federal depository iasue
coverage levels are collateralized with securitiedd by a third party custodian in the City’s name.
Investments, other than investments that are didige of the U.S. government, its agencies and
instrumentalities, are insured or registered inGitg’'s name and held by a third party custodiém.order to
anticipate market changes and to provide a leveleatrrity for all funds, the collateralization lévell be
102% (on a market value basis) of principal anduwent interest on the deposits.

3. ADVALOREM TAXES

Property tax is levied each October 1 on the asdegalue listed as of the prior January 1 for @dll rand
personal property located in the City. Assessedievalepresents the appraised value less applicable
exemptions authorized by the City Council. Apprdisalues are established by the Dallas Central &ipar
District and the Kaufman Central Appraisal Distratt100% of estimated market value. The total assks
value for the tax roll of January 1, 2008, upon ckhithe 2009 fiscal year levy was based, was
$6,600,000,179. Taxes are due on October 1, imredglidollowing the January 1 lien date and are
delinquent after the following January 31st. Pgnalbd interest is charged at 7% on delinquent taxes
beginning February 1, and increases each mont8%odn July 1, additional interest accrues at tie 08 1%
each month.

Current tax collections for the year ended Septer@®e2009, were $40,894,299 or 97.34% of the otitiaex
levy and total tax collections (including collegt®on previous years) were $41,314,837 or 98.35%hef
current tax levy.

In Texas, countywide central appraisal districts agquired under the Property Tax Code to asséss al
property within the appraisal district on the basisl00% of its appraised value and are prohibftedch
applying any assessment ratios. The value of prppéthin the appraisal district must be reviewacknry
three years; however, the City may, at its own agperequire annual reviews of appraised values.dity
may challenge appraised values established bypibriaal district through various appeals andeifassary,
legal action. Under this legislation, the City dooes to set tax rates on City property. Howevethe
effective tax rate, excluding tax rates for bondwl ather contractual obligations, adjusted for new
improvements, exceeds the rate for the previous pgamore than 8%, qualified voters of the City may
petition for an election to determine whether toitithe tax rate to no more than 8% above the datx of the
previous year.

The City Charter does not provide for a debt lintigrefore, no computation of legal debt margin ban
made. However, at September 30, 2009, the Cityahteck margin of $1.86000 for every $100 of valuatio
based upon a maximum ad valorem tax rate of $2d060e¥ery $100 of valuation imposed by Texas
Constitutional law.
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4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at September 30, 2009 for the govertsniedividual major funds, which have receivaldes
non-major, internal service, and fiduciary fundstlie aggregate, including the applicable allowarfoes

uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Quality of Life Water Drainage Nonmajor
Corporation Bond and Utility and Other
Genera Grants (4B SalesTax) Hnance Sewer District Funds Total
Receivables:
Accounts $9216161 $ 5315 $ - $ 55018 $6,348689 $143257 $ 81,804 $15,898,053
Ad valoremtaxes 1,979,604 - - - - - - 1,979,604
Other taxes 1,633,855 - - - - - - 1,633,855
Assessments - - - 324,954 - - - 324954
Intergovernmental 4,134,899 - 1,355,682 - - - 886,653 6,377,234
Gross receivables 16,964,519 53,125 1,355,682 379,972 6,348,689 143,257 968,457 26,213,700
Less: allowance for
uncollectibles (5,961,726) - - (13,822) (222,078) - (59,209) (6,256,835)
Nettotal receivables $11,002,793 $ 53,125 $1,355682 $ 366,150 $6,126611 $143257 $ 909,248 $19,956,865

Governmental funds report deferred revenues in edion with receivables for

revenues that are not

considered to be available to liquidate liabilitcfghe current period. At the end of the curréstdl year, the

various components of deferred revenues reportdttigovernmental funds were as

General fund - ambulance accounts receivable

General fund - ad valorem taxes receivable

General fund - court fines receivable

General fund - accounts receivable, grass and weed mowing
Housing Grants fund - HUD vouchers

Bond Finance capital projects fund - assessments receivable
Bond Finance capital projects fund - other receivable
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Total deferred revenues for governmental funds
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$ 1,495,690
1,284,632
553,674
764,930
53,125
324,954
28,200
5,000
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of the changes in chpisaets for the fiscal year ended September 31®:20

Beginning Additions and Deletions and Ending
Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
Governmental activities: (Restated)

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 19851625 $ 1849064 $ - $ 21,700,689

Construction in progress 48,534,231 17,718,584 5,804,578 60,448,237
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 68,385,856 19,567,648 5,804,578 82,148,926
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings 46,793,786 1,227,366 - 48,021,152

Infrastructure 201,654,875 1236451 - 202,891,326

Improvements 13,336,444 1,167,124 - 14,503,568

Equipment 38,961,351 4925470 1,168,244 42,718,577
Total capital assets, being depreciated 300,746,456 8,556,411 1,168,244 308,134,623
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 13,519,496 1,230,788 - 14,750,284

Infrastructure 108,667,079 4,611,735 - 113,278,814

Improvements 4,968,238 694,743 - 5,662,981

Equipment 20,795,633 4,464,666 1,124,213 24,136,086
Total accumulated depreciation 147,950,446 11,001,932 1,124,213 157,828,165
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 152,796,010 (2445,5521) 44,031 150,306,458
Governmental activities capital assets, net $221,181866 $17,122,127 $ 5,848,609 $232,455,384

Business-type activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 7128735 $ 2538544 $ - $ 9,667,279

Construction in progress 5,381,113 9,279,846 6,230,166 8,430,793
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 12,509,848 11,818,390 6,230,166 18,098,072
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings 4,265,535 1,367,107 - 5,632,642

Infrastructure 210,371,869 4,917,604 - 215,289,473

Improvements 366,008 - - 366,008

Equipment 4,510,994 408,325 18,500 4,900,819
Total capital assets, being depreciated 219,514,406 6,693,036 18,500 226,188,942
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 1,265,373 111,052 - 1,376,425

Infrastructure 61,918,884 4,351,899 - 66,270,783

Improvements 71,824 19,721 - 91,545

Equipment 2,783,083 402,607 18,500 3,167,190
Total accumulated depreciation 66,039,164 4,885,279 18,500 70,905,943
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 153,475,242 1,807,757 - 155,282,999
Business-type activities capital assets,net  $165,985,090 $13,626,147 $ 6,230,166 $173,381,071
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/progiof the City as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 1,505,961
Fire services 1,125,565
Police services 1,651,649
Field services 4,302,581
Public works 1,166,966
Community development 74,781
Library services 20,926
Parks and recreation 930,643
Housing and community services 222,860

Total governmental activities $ 11,001,932

Business-type activities:

Water and sewer $ 3,756,755
Drainage utility 688,740
Municipal airport 439,784

Total business-type activities $ 4,885,279

The City has active construction projects as oft&aper 30, 2009. Projects include street constmcti
primarily in the southeast section of Mesquite,jaas traffic signalization projects throughout Géy, as
well as improvements in water storage and distidoutfacilities. Construction in progress has been
categorized by the primary revenue source beind teskund the construction as follows:
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Construction
Spent-to-date Commitments
Governmental activities:
Projects funded by general obligation bonds:
Street $ 4,699,166 $ 2,441,521
Municipal building 30,137,021 1,987,390
Library 140,958 -
Traffic signal 14,805 1,121
Projects funded by local finance sources:
Street 169,942 355,379
Municipal building 600,134 264,109
Traffic Signal 14,348 72,851
Finance - 176,598
Equipment Replacement - 884,987
Projects funded by general sales tax (4B portion):
Public safety 21,811 426,320
Transportation 21,541,256 778,634
Parks and recreation 3,108,796 825,994
Total governmental activities $ 60,448,237 $ 8,214,904
Business-type activities:
Projects funded by revenue bonds:
Water and sewer $ 7,941,919 $ 3,564,117
Drainage utility district 448,280 33,754
Projects funded by general obligation bonds:
Municipal airport 12,000 250
Projects funded by general sales tax (4B portion):
Municipal airport 28,594 -
Total business-type activities $ 8,430,793 $ 3,598,121

6. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

Due to/from other funds-

These amounts represent intergovernmental revesweeal but not received in the Other Grants special
revenue fund in the “Other Governmental Funds” amémount for a loan to the Airport to cover aaail
cash needed. The current portion of lending/ lairng arrangements outstanding at September 30, 2009
as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Other Grants Special Revenue Fund 824,992
General Fund Airport Fund $167,105
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Transfers-

Transfers were as follows for the fiscal year enSegtember 30, 2009:

Fund Transfers In Transfers Out
General $ 8,394,261 $ 9146175
Housing Grants - 150,000
4B Sales Tax Special Revenue - 1,358,943
Bond Finance 12 551,622
Non-Major Governmental Funds 12,180,778 4,623,012
Water and Sewer - 4573,495
Non-Major Enterprise Fund - 171,804
$ 20,575,051 $ 20575051
The transfers were for the following purposes:
Transfer from Fund / Purpose Transfer to Fund Amount
General Fund-
Property tax debt service levy Debt Service $ 8,911,950
Additional Bond Proceeds Debt Service 2,620
Unreserved Council Funds Capital Projects- Local Finance 231,605
Grants Fund-
Indirect cost charge General 150,000
4B Sales Tax Special Revenue -
Operating Subsidy - Parks & Recreation General 1,358,943
Bond Finance Fund-
Interest Income Allocation General 520,318
Additional Bond Proceeds Debt Service 7,255
Residual Equity Transfer Debt Service 24,049
Non-Major Governmental Funds-
Hotel / Moatel Tax General Obligation Debt Allocation Debt service 158,000
Other Special Revenue -
9-1-1 Operations Subsidy General 840,000
Local Finance Capital Project -
Delt Service - General Obligation Bond Finance 12
Roadway Impact Fees Debt Service Debt service 1,400,000
Unreserved Council Funds General 975,000
Capital Projects Funding Debt service 1,250,000
Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund-
Nonoperating administrative and overhead charge Genera 4,550,000
Genreral Obligation Debt Allocation Debt Service 23,495
Non-Major Enterprise Fund-
Airport general obligation debt allocation Debt service 171,804
Total $ 20,575,051
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The Water and Sewer fund contributes on behalhefdther City funds to the General Liability fund@he
total amount contributed to the General Liabiliond was $1,405,000. The General fund also conéibu
$100,000 to the General Liability fund in fiscabye009.

In the government wide statement of activities dditional transfer is shown for assets purchasedhby
City’s governmental type funds for the airport eptese fund in the amount of $2,542,914. In thedflevel
statements it is shown as a capital contributiathénairport fund.

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

Various types of long-term debt have been issuethbyCity for the acquisition and construction cdjor

capital facilities and equipment as follows:

General obligation bonds are issued pursuantaiervauthorization for infrastructure and facility
projects accounted for in a governmental capitejgot fund. General obligation bonds have also been
issued in previous fiscal years to refund priortdebues. During the year $4,245,000 was issued to
advance refund prior tax-exempt bonds. The Citgrids to retire this debt, plus interest, from ad
valorem taxes.

Certificate of obligation debt is similar to gerlesaligation bonds in their usage and retiremeritdmu
not require voter authorization and are not useddfunding debt. Included in the June 2009 bord sa
was $11,260,000 for constructing, improving, equigpand renovating a Police/City Hall facility,
acquisition of land for municipal airport purpos@spfessional fees and costs to provide electronic
records management, major repairs and improventerggisting municipal buildings, and other street,
alley, and sidewalk improvements.

Contractual obligations are issued to acquire egerg and will also be repaid from ad valorem proper
taxes. During the year, $1,865,000 in obligatiors wsued to purchase computer equipment, software,
motor vehicles, park equipment, and other equipmsetl in General fund operations.

Water and sewer revenue bonds are issued to prduités for certain improvements to the water
distribution and wastewater collection systems a#l as to refund prior water and sewer debt issues.
These bonds are reported in the Water and Sewdrdsrthe debt will be repaid from revenues of this
enterprise fund operation. Included in the June92b6nd sale was $8,380,000 to provide funds to
improve and extend the City’s combined waterwonkd aewer systems and to fund the Reserve Fund
requirement for the bonds.

Municipal drainage utility system revenue bondsisseed to provide funds for drainage improvements,
including the acquisition and construction of stawes, equipment, and facilities for the Drainaggity
District. Debt for this enterprise operation isngerepaid from revenues generated from customer
charges.
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Long-term bonded debt at September 30, 2009, iesltige following individual issues:

Governmental Activities

General Obligation Bonds-
Series 2000 improvements
Series 2001 refunding and improvements
Series 2002 improvements
Series 2004A refunding and improve ments
Taxable Series 2004B refunding
Series 2005 refunding and improvement
Series 2006 improvements
Series 2008 refunding and improvements
Series 2009 refunding

Certificate of Obligation Bonds-
Series 2001
Series 2002
Series 2004
Series 2004A
Series 2005
Series 2006
Series 2007
Series 2008
Series 2009

Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations-
Series 2004
Series 2005
Series 2006
Series 2007
Series 2008
Series 2009

Interest
Rate (%

4.40-5.50
3.00-5.00
2.875-4.90
2.50-4.625
1.40-4.65
3.25-5.00
4.00-5.00
3.50-3.625
2.00-4.60

3.00-4.25
2.25-4.20
2.00-4.625
2.00-5.00
3.25-5.00
4.00-5.00
4.00-5.00
3.50-4.00
2.00-4.60

2.00-2.90
3.25-4.00
4.00-4.125
3.65-3.75
3.50-3.375
2.00-3.00

Total govermmental activities long-term bonded debt

Less: deferred loss on refunding

Net governmental activities long-term bonded debt
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Maturity
Date

02/15/14
02/15/21
02/15/22
02/15/24
02/15/15
02/15/25
02/15/26
02/15/21
02/15/29

02/15/11
02/15/14
02/15/24
02/15/24
02/15/25
02/15/26
02/15/27
02/15/28
02/15/29

02/15/10
02/15/10
02/15/11
02/15/12
02/15/13
02/15/14

Amount Due Within
Outstanding One Year
60,000 $ -
2,845,000 625,000
3,985,000 250,000
8,745,000 1,125,000
3,360,000 505,000
11,170,000 960,000
1,775,000 -
1,695,000 120,000
4,245,000 85,000
37,880,000 3,670,000
70,000 35,000
350,000 80,000
5,085,000 255,000
1,745,000 85,000
7,295,000 80,000
7,760,000 -
18,130,000 -
9,865,000 205,000
11,260,000 225,000
61,560,000 965,000
255,000 255,000
370,000 370,000
735,000 360,000
1,405,000 450,000
2,810,000 670,000
1,865,000 360,000
7,440,000 2,465,000
106,880,000 7,100,000
(907,687) -
$105,972,313 $ 7,100,000
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Interest
Rate (%
Business-type Activities-
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds-
Series 2001 refunding and improvements 2.25-5.00
Series 2002 improvements 2.00-5.00
Series 2004 refunding and improvements 2.625-5.00
Series 2005 refunding and improvements 3.25-5.25
Series 2006 improvements 4.00-5.00
Series 2007 improvements 4.00-5.00
Series 2008 improvements 3.50-4.50
Series 2009 improvements 2.00-4.60
Drainage Utility System Revenue Bonds-
Series 1998 refunding and improvements 4.25-5.50
Series 2000 improvements 4.40-5.50
Series 2002 improvements 2.00-5.00
Series 2004 refunding 2.00-5.00

Total business-type activities long-term debt
Less: premium and deferred loss on refunding

Net business-type activities long-term debt

Net long-term bonded debt

Maturity Amount Due W ithin
Date QOutstanding One Year
03/01/21 $ 5,340,000 $ 685,000
03/01/22 5,565,000 325,000
03/01/24 9,855,000 810,000
03/01/25 12,565,000 720,000
03/01/26 7,985,000 240,000
03/01/27 7,260,000 240,000
03/01/28 10,485,000 885,000
03/01/29 8,380,000 300,000

67,435,000 4,205,000

03/01/18 1,570,000 255,000
03/01/20 1,375,000 95,000
03/01/22 2,555,000 150,000
03/01/12 1,325,000 420,000
6,825,000 920,000

74,260,000 5,125,000

(292,496) -

73,967,504 5,125,000

$179,939,817 $12,225,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity forgderm bonded debt are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Interest

$ 4,361,421
4,104,411
3,844,431
3,594,868
3,341,211

13,132,217
7,085,474
1,498,140

Business-type Activities

Principal Interest
$ 5,125,000 $ 3,124,921
5,370,000 2,929,816
5,625,000 2,712,156
5,285,000 2,488,278
4,940,000 2,271,961
22,280,000 8,296,766
17,335,000 3,667,794
8,300,000 709,593

Fiscal Year Ending September 30 Principal

2010 $ 7,100,000
2011 7,020,000
2012 6,720,000
2013 6,115,000
2014 6,265,000

2015-2019 27,765,000

2020-2024 28,615,000

2025-2029 17,280,000
T otal

$ 106,880,000 $40,962,173 $74,260,000 $26,201,285
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Advance RefundingsThe June 2009 general obligation bond issue pdscesre used to advance refund
and defease in substance certain maturities eiitting outstanding bond issuances. The advaricediag
allowed the City to restructure future debt payreeint order to extend their maturities. The refagdi
resulted in an increase in total debt service payshef $2,172,851 of the new debt over the old debt
therefore an economic loss was realized. The difignportion of the issue provided resources taipase
direct obligations of the U. S. government thatevplaced in a separate irrevocable trust for thrpqae of
generating resources for all future debt serviggrats of the debt being refunded. As a resultre¢fiended
bonds are considered to be defeased and the tjabdis been removed from the governmental activitie
column of the statement of net assets in the goventrwide financial statements. The differencevieen
the reacquisition price and the net carrying amanirthe old debt (deferred amount on refunding) wé
amortized over the remaining life of the originabt issued. The statement of net assets on thergoeat-
wide financial statements reports this deferred @arh@s a contra-liability to the new debt obligatid he
details of the refunding debt transaction wereotlews:

General
Obligation Bonds
Series 2009

Amount of new debt issue $ 4,245,000

Less: Bond premium (9,881)

Less: net issuance costs (31,494)
Reacquisition price $ 4,203,625
Net carrying amount of old debt 3,950,000
Deferred amount on refunding $ 253,625
Increase in total debt service payments

of new debt over old debt $ 2,172,851
Economic loss on refunding $ 2,172,851

In prior years, the City defeased certain gendshigation and other bonds by using the proceedwaf bonds
to purchase direct obligations of the U. S. governtithat were placed in separate irrevocable tifastthe
purpose of generating resources for all future debtice payments of the debt being refunded. Aesalt, the
refunded bonds are considered to be defeased andugt account assets and the liability for théeawsed
bonds are not included in the City’s financial staénts. The principal balance of refunded bondls st
outstanding at September 30, 2009 was: water amelr k3,415,000 and general obligation $4,475,000.
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Capital Leases-The City enters into lease agreements as lesseéntorcing the acquisition ofarious
equipment which is payable from both governmental business-type activities. These lease agreements
qualify as capital leases for accounting purposel therefore, have been recorded at the preséumt oh
their future minimum lease payments as of the itioeplate.

The assets acquired through capital leases amdlasd:

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities
Asset:
Equipment $277,321 $ 382,655
Less: Accumulated depreciation (142,648) (187,341)
Total $134,673 $195,314

The future minimum lease obligations and the nes@nt value of these minimum lease payments as of
September 30, 2009, were as follows:

Year ending Governmental Business-type
September 30 Activities Activities
2010 $ 19,948 $ 41,530
2011 13,299 38,377
2012 - 11,308
Total minimum future lease payments 33,247 91,215
Less: Amount representing interest (1,047) (3,795)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 32,200 $ 87,420

Notes PayableThe City entered into déan agreement with the State Infrastructure Bamkhe original
amount of $5,615,287 for Mesquite’s participatiorithwthe State of Texas for the LBJ Corridor
Improvements. The interest rate on the note i804.1Debt service payments are being made through
available revenues from the Towne Center TIF. diitstanding balance at year end is $4,454,246.

The City entered into a revolving loan agreementtie amount of $555,328 with the State Energy
Conservation Office to implement conservation inerments at the Municipal Center. Construction was
completed on July 19, 2007 and the loan was séb @nortize over 9.75 years beginning August 30720
The interest rate on the note is 3%. Debt sepéganents will be made from available operating tiofithe
government. The outstanding balance at year epdiis, 146.

51



City of Mesquite, Texas

Notesto Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2009

Annual debt service requirements through matuatynbtes payable are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year Ending September 30 Principal Interest
2010 $ 472439 $ 195263
2011 491,241 176,461
2012 510,797 156,905
2013 531,136 136,565
2014 552,292 115,410
2015-2018 2,337,487 234,464
Total $ 4,895,392 $ 1,015,068

Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended@ember 30, 2009, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:
General obligation bonds $ 38,320,000 $ 4,245,000 $ 4,685,000 $ 37,880,000 $ 3,670,000
Certificates of obligation 55,250,000 11,260,000 4,950,000 61,560,000 965,000
Public property finance
contractual obligations 7,610,000 1,865,000 2,035,000 7,440,000 2,465,000
Total bonds payable 101,180,000 17,370,000 11,670,000 106,880,000 7,100,000
Less deferred loss on refunding (752,326) (253,625) (98,264) (907,687) -
Net bonds payable 100,427,674 17,116,375 11,571,736 105,972,313 7,100,000
Other General Fund long-term liability:
Notes payable 5,349,753 - 454,361 4,895,392 472,439
Capital leases 80,424 - 48,224 32,200 19,083
Accrued compensated absences 18,278,034 679,840 392,090 18,565,784 6,701,463
Estimated claims payable 2,383,441 9,951,873 10,349,425 1,985,889 1,291,963
Total governmental activities 126,519,326 27,748,088 22,815,836 131,451,578 15,584,948
Business-type activities:
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds -water/sewer 62,795,000 8,380,000 3,740,000 67,435,000 4,205,000
Revenue bonds -drainage 7,710,000 - 885,000 6,825,000 920,000
Total revenue bonds payable 70,505,000 8,380,000 4,625,000 74,260,000 5,125,000
Less premium and deferred
loss on refunding (367,703) 23,096 (52,111) (292,496) -
Net revenue bonds payable 70,137,297 8,403,096 4,572,889 73,967,504 5,125,000
Capital leases 155,645 - 68,225 87,420 38,965
Accrued compensated absences 1,218,790 64,424 46,363 1,236,851 258,032
Total business-type activities 71,511,732 8,467,520 4,687,477 75,291,775 5,421,997
Total long-term liabilities $198,031,058 $36,215,608 $27,503,313 $206,743,353 $21,006,945
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8. RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Description- The City provides pension benefits for all of ifgll-time employees through a
nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defindmbnefit plan in the statewide Texas Municipal Fstient
System ("TMRS") one of 833 administered by TMRS, agent multiple-employer public employee
retirement system. TMRS issues a publicly availdisiancial report that includes financial statenseand
required supplementary information for TMRS. Theport may be obtained by writing TMRS, P. O. Box
149153, Austin, Texas, 78714-9153 or by calling-82a@-8677.

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee'sibations to the plan, with interest, and the Gihanced
monetary credits, with interest. At the date thanpbegan, the City granted monetary credits fovicer
rendered before the plan began of a theoreticabatrequal to two times what would have been coutiith

by the employee, with interest, prior to establishtrof the plan. Monetary credits for service sitie plan
began are 200% of the employee's accumulated batiams. In addition, the City can grant as often a
annually another type of monetary credit referaedd an updated service credit which is a thealegimount
which, when added to the employee's accumulatetlilbotions and the monetary credits for serviceaitne
plan began, would be the total monetary creditsemgloyee contributions accumulated with interéte
current employee contribution rate and City matghpercent had always been in existence and if the
employee's salary had always been the average ghhiry in the last three years that are onehefare the
effective date. At retirement, the benefit is ctdted as if the sum of the employee's accumulated
contributions with interest and the employer-finegshenonetary credits with interest were used tolmase an
annuity.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governirdylad the City, within the options available in thete
statutes governing TMRS and within the actuariast@ints also in the statutes.

Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

Deposit Rate: 7%
Matching Ratio (City to Employee): 2to1
A member is vested after 5 years

Members can retire at certain ages, based on thes y# service with the City. The Service Retiretnen
Eligibilities for the City are: 5 years/age 60, \&ars/any age.

Contributions- Under the state law governing TMRS, the City iquieed to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate. This rate consists of the nowusal contribution rate and the prior service caosttigbution
rate, both of which are calculated to be a levetgat of payroll from year to year. The normal cost
contribution rate finances the currently accruingnetary credits due to the City matching percehictvare
the obligation of the City as of an employee'sreatient date, not at the time the employee's catioivs are
made. The normal cost contribution rate is thea@lly determined percent of payroll necessargatsfy
the obligation of the City to each employee atttime his/her retirement becomes effective. Therpevice
contribution rate amortizes the unfunded actualiability over the remainder of the plan's 25-year
amortization period. The unit credit actuarial costhod is used for determining the City contribatrate.
Both the employees and the City make contributimesithly. Since the City needs to know its contritut
rate in advance for budgetary purposes, theromeayear delay between the actuarial valuationgbates as
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the basis for the rate and the calendar year wiemnate goes into effect (i.e., December 31, 208lation
is effective for rates beginning January 2009).

Annual Pension Cost¥or fiscal year 2009, the City's annual pensiost b $10,081,846 was equal to the
City's required and actual contributions at a dbotion rate of 16.93% of covered payroll. The riegd
contribution was determined as part of the Decendier2007, actuarial valuation using the projeaiad
credits actuarial cost method. The actuarial astiomgp included (a) 7% investment rate of returnt (@ie
administrative expenses), (b) salary increases magge and service, (c) 2.1% cost of living adjestt, and
(d) 3% inflation rate adjustment. The actuarialieabf assets is amortized cost. The City's unfurasédiarial
accrued liability is being amortized over a 30-yelased period as a level percentage of payroll.

The City’s net pension obligation for TMRS for thast three years is calculated as follows:

Year Annual Pension % of APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
9/30/2009 $ 10,081,846 100% -
9/30/2008 $ 9,831,841 100% -
9/30/2007 $ 9,067,506 100% -

All annual required contributions have been paidréfore, there is no net pension obligation.

Future Funding RequirementsMajor changes have occurred at TMRS over the paatral years which
have caused a significant increase in member aoesribution rates. TMRS has traditionally inwsbiits
funds in high-quality long-term bonds which, of ceei, have seen significant reductions in their rHte
return. In addition, TMRS management has undentakenajor study and analysis of actuarial assumsgtio
which resulted in revisions to several of the agstions. The first set of actuarial changes wademented
in 2007 which created an initial set of increasesnember cities in 2009 and additional actuariangfes
were approved by the TMRS Board of Directors in@®ich will cause further increases in 2010.

TMRS is a flexible system that allows member citesdopt benefit levels that they determine appatg

for their city. Among those benefit levels, citiean choose to adopt Updated Service Credits (L5Q3)
annual Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA). Mesquitas chosen to fund the USC at 100% of the based
calculated USC amount and the COLA at 70% of CIPhese levels are similar to those chosen by other
comparable North Texas cities. In addition todp&on for setting various levels of these bengétsnember
city may choose to establish these benefits asraitcally repeating. With the adoption of theseddis as
automatically repeating, a city’s annual contribatrate is set to assume that the city will adbps¢ benefits
each year in the future. This automatically rejpgatissumption has a major impact on a memberscity’
annual contribution rate.

After receiving Mesquite’s proposed rates for 2@b@ future years, the city concluded that it caelduce
the 2010 TMRS annual contribution rate and contitm®ffer the existing level of benefit for USC and
COLA by terminating the annual automatic repeatpgon for these benefits and adopt them as ad hwoc.
future years, these benefit levels will need t@$&imblished during the annual budget process.
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The City’s full contribution rate with USC and COLa#s automatically repeating was proposed at 24.809%
covered payroll with the 2010 phase-in rate propael8.89%. The City’'s member contribution raighw
the USC and COLA at the same benefit levels is®4.8vhen adopted as ad hoc. City staff is currently
working with an outside consultant to examine tHdRIS actuarial assumptions and their impact on the
City’s contribution rate. Information gatheredrfradhis study can be used for long-term planning famd
discussions with TMRS decision makers.

Required Supplementary Information Required supplementary information for the analydigunding
progress for the past three years is presented dimatedy following the Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements.

9. REGIONAL SYSTEMSFOR WATER SUPPLY AND WASTEWATER TREATMENT

The City secures substantially all of its watergypmnd sewer services from the North Texas Muaicip
Water District (the "District"). The District ha®lice, taxation, and eminent domain powers andtlaized
to issue revenue bonds with State approval anditingas a political subdivision independent of @ity.
The District is governed by a 17-member board (Baard"), the City being authorized by statute ppaint
two of those members. The Board has full powerdiadretion to establish its budget and to set #tesrfor
services it provides by contracts with its memhbées and customers. The Board is empowered butstat
and contract, or otherwise permitted by law, tccaoiiginue a facility or to enforce payment of an aidp
charge, fee, or rental due to the District. A mortiof the outstanding bonds of the District are txaurt
revenue bonds based on contracts with certain mewibes of the District. The City provides for the
payment of its contractual obligations with the tiiis from revenue generated by its waterworks sexer
systems. Such contractual payments provide fomp#tymnent of the principal and interest requiremeamts
specified indebtedness and associated operatiormaitttenance expenses of the District. Becausé&eof t
factors mentioned above the District is not inchidethe City's basic financial statements.

Water Supply-On August 1, 1988, the City entered into a comtnath the District whereby the District agreed
to provide water supply for the benefit of the Cifyhe provisions of this contract are similar imcept,
essence and intent to the provisions of the cantréginally entered into on December 12, 1953 turn for
this service, the City agreed to pay the Districh aate per 1,000-gallon basis, subject to mininanmmual
payments which approximated $9.465 million for fiseal year ended September 30, 2009.

Wastewater TreatmentOn October 1, 1975, the City entered into a cahtwath the District whereby the
District agreed to provide a wastewater treatmeit disposal system for the benefit of the City atiter
cities located in Dallas, Collin, Kaufman and RoekwCounties, Texas. Each member city annually pisys
proportionate share of operating expenses ands#ebice of the District. The City's annual paymimtthe
year ended September 30, 2009, was approximatedy $3nillion.

10. SELF-INSURANCE

Group Health Insurance-The City established the Health Claims internalise fund in 1984 to account for
the provision of group life and health insuranceerage for employees and their dependents. ThésCity
health insurance program is a "self-insured" plamdéd by both the City and participating employ&dwe

City makes a predetermined contribution to the glach biweekly payroll for group life and healtsurance
coverage for qualifying City employees and a supsavard employee dependent coverage. Employees

55



City of Mesquite, Texas

Notesto Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2009

contribute through payroll deductions for the batmf dependent health insurance coverage. ThesCity
health insurance program includes stop loss coeemith a $250,000 deductible per individual with a
$1,500,000 liability limit per claim. The coverageconsistent with prior years and settled clairmsehnot
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of thetheee fiscal years.

All claims are reviewed and processed by an indggeninsurance company. The insurance company pays
claims based on the health plan, and the City rneisgs the insurance company for the amount of elagh
paid. The insurance company charges the City fofemach claim processed.

The Health Claims internal service fund began tbeaf year with $1,382,113 in unrestricted net @saéter
inclusion of $1,009,000 of estimated outstandingltheclaims payable. During the year, operatingeeses
exceeded operating and non-operating revenues By¢,1 after inclusion of a $64,000 decrease in
estimated claims payable resulting in a $1,248,082nce in unrestricted net assets at year-endialct
claims paid totaled $9,666,152. The decrease inaseets was due increased claims activity while
contributions from the City and from the employeemained about the same. The City has continued a
contract with an outside firm to assist the Citgamntrolling and monitoring medical claims.

The estimated claims payable of $945,000 reportede Health Claims internal service fund is basedhe
requirements of GASB Statement No. Hxcounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and
Related Insurance Issues ("GASB No. 10"), which requires that a liabilitg eported if information prior to
the issuance of the financial statements indicéttad it is probable that a liability has been imedrat the
date of the financial statements and the amounh®floss can be reasonably estimated. The lialiity
unpaid claims includes allocated loss adjustmeptrges. Changes in the fund's claims liability amau
fiscal years 2008 and 2009 were:

Current Year
Beginning of Claims End of
Fiscal Fiscal Year and Changes Claim Fiscal Year
Year Liability in Estimates Payments Liability
2008 $ 704,000 $ 9,001,628 $ 8,696,628 $ 1,009,000
2009 $ 1,009,000 $ 9,602,152 $ 9,666,152 $ 945,000

Accrued liabilities include provisions for claimsported and claims incurred but not reported. Triogigion
for reported claims and for claims incurred but yettreported is determined by an independent d@mgu

General Liability Insurance-The City is exposed to various risks of loss ealab torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissiopsjes to employees; and natural disasters. DUtB®p, the
City established the General Liability internal\dee fund to account for the provision of properggneral
liability, and workers' compensation insurance. Tig’'s insurance coverage is through scheduledifipe
policies with large deductibles with the primaryrear being the Texas Municipal League Risk Podhder
this program, the General Liability Fund provideverage for up to a maximum of $10,000 retentian fo
each real & personal property claim and a schediiheitl on coverage, $10,000 retention for each reobi
equipment claim and a scheduled limit on cover&36,000 retention for each auto physical damagencla
and a scheduled limit on coverage, $100,000 reteritir each auto catastrophe claim and a $7,700i0@0

on coverage, $100,000 retention for each law eefoent claim and a $5,000,000 limit on coverage,
$100,000 retention for each general liability cleanmd a $1,000,000 limit on coverage, $2,500 retarfbr
each airport hangarkeeper claim and a $1,000,86@0dn coverage, $100,000 retention for each aatulity
claim and a $1,000,000 limit on coverage, $100,B&@ntion for each errors and omission claim and a
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$5,000,000 limit on coverage with a $10,000,000uahraggregate, $300,000 retention for each worker’s
compensation claim, $10,000 retention for each €maverage claim with a $500,000 limit on coverayel
$10,000 retention for each storage tank pollutiaint with a $1,000,000 limit on coverage. The Gahe
Liability Fund is funded through revenues from fmdpating governmental and proprietary funds of @ity.

The above coverage is consistent with prior yead settled claims have not exceeded the commercial
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The General Liability fund began the fiscal yeathwinrestricted net assets of ($305,118). Durirgytbar,
operating and non-operating revenues exceededtopeexpenses by $366,160 after inclusion of a $&3
decrease in estimated claims payable, resultiry$61,042 net assets balance at fiscal year-eie. City
made an additional contribution in 2008/2009 frdma General fund and Water and Sewer fund to cdwer t
deficit in net assets at the beginning of the yeactual claims paid were $683,273. The estimatadns
payable of $1,040,889 reported in the General litgbnternal service fund is based on the requieats of
GASB No. 10. The liability for unpaid claims inclkesl allocated loss adjustment expenses. Changée in t
fund's claims liability amount in fiscal years 200& 2009 were:

Current Year

Beaqinning of Claims End of
Fiscal Fiscal Year and Changes Claim Fiscal Year
Year Liability in Estimates Payments Liability
2008 $ 1,110,022 $ 1,073,784 $ 809,365 $ 1,374,441
2009 $ 1,374,441 $ 349,721 $ 683,273 $ 1,040,889

Accrued liabilities include provisions for claimsported and claims incurred but not reported. Theigions
for reported claims and for claims incurred but yitreported are determined by an independenuttans.

11. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described iteNg) the City provides postretirement healthcamefits to
retirees and their dependents. These benefitsrav&lpd to retired employees under the same pléinrepas
active employees in accordance with City ordinanEes those employees who retired prior to Febrdary
2000 the premiums are almost entirely paid by th, Gubject to a small cap, until the employeaiatt age
65. For those employees hired prior to Octob&0D4 who retire after February 1, 2000 with a mimmof
ten years of service, the City will pay 4% per yefservice (up to 25 years of service) subjea small cap
amount. The City’s payment for the retirees’ dajmaris is 2.6% per year of service. Employees taftat
October 1, 2004 who retire at age 55 or older viBhyears of service will receive a City medicalrpla
contribution of $12/month for each year of servigéier age 65, retired employees may continue enQlity
healthcare plan if they pay the premiums or willdaghe option to enroll in a Medicare Supplemean@nd
pay the monthly premium associated with the plan.

The City paid approximately $1.7 million for 253irees’ premiums in fiscal year 2009. City paidrokfor
retired employees and their dependents approxingitéx® million. Retiree health care activity ipoeted in
the Health Claims Internal Service Fund.

The City implemented Governmental Accounting StatsleBoard (GASB) Statement 4&counting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB) in fiscal year
2008.

Funding Policy —current retirees contribute to the retiree hegdtte program the total blended premium for
active and retired participants. The City conttidm to the retiree health care program consistpagtas-
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you-go claims in excess of the retiree contribigiorRetiree contribution rates for fiscal year 200&e
$3,880 to $6,440 per year depending on coveragelsleselected. In fiscal year 2009, total retiree
contributions were $785,430. The City contribusiado the plan for fiscal year 2009, which are edoal
claims and premiums paid in excess of premiumsctatl, were $2,401,268.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB AssefFhe City’s annual other postemployment benefitEBJPcost for

the retiree health care program is calculated basdtle annual required contribution of the empigydRC),

an amount actuarially determined in accordance with parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on agang basis, is projected to cover normal coshegaar and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or dimg excess) over a period not to exceed thirtysied he
following table shows the components of the Citgisnual OPEB cost for the year, the amount annually
contributed to the plan, and the changes in thg<iiet OPEB obligation to the plan.

Annual required contribution $ 1,787,567
Interest adjustment to net OPEB obligation (12,883)
Adjustment to ARC 12,799

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 1,787,483
Contributions made (2,401,268)

Increase in net OPEB asset (613,785)
Net OPEB asset - beginning of year (322,068)
Net OPEB asset - end of year $ (935,853)

The following table shows the assumed annual OREBand net OPEB obligation for the past two years.

% of OPEB
Fiscal Discout Annual Cost % of Cost Net OPEB
Year Ended Rate OPEB Cost Contributed Contributed Asset
9/30/2009 4.00% $ 1,787,483 $ 2,401,268 134.3% $ (935,853)
9/30/2008 6.60% $ 2,591,340 $ 2,913,408 112.4% $ (322,068)

Funding Status and Funding Progress As of October 1, 2008, the most recent actuaahlation date, the
plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued ligbflor benefits was $30,375,813, and there wasamot
actuarial value of net assets. During the fisearythe City contributed $2,401,268 to the plasylteng in an
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $874,545. The covered payroll was $55,482,589 had t
ratio of UAAL to the covered payroll was 50.4%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involveimsttes of the value of reported amounts and assongpt
about the probability of occurrence of events fao ithe future. Examples include assumptions ahdaute
employment, mortality, and the healthcare costdremounts determined regarding the funded staittise
plan and annual required contributions of the eygl@re subject to continual revision as actualltesre
compared with past expectations and new estimatasiade about the future.

The required schedule of funding progress immeljidialowing the notes to the financial statements
presents multiyear trend information about whettiex actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial@ddiability for benefits.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions l the October 1, 2008 actuarial valuation, theyeage cost method
was used. The actuarial assumptions included% @estment rate of return which is a blended cétine
expected long-term investment returns on the péseta and on the employer’s own investments. Awian
aggregate payroll increase of 3% was assumed.eTd@o healthcare trend increase assumed asedbhses
to insured plan premiums and self-funded plan fogdire assumed to be borne by the retirees. The Ug\
being amortized at a level percentage of projegi@gtoll on an open basis. The remaining amortpati
period at October 1, 2008 was thirty years.

Required Supplementary Information Required supplementary information for the analydfiSunding
progress is presented immediately following theeddo the Basic Financial Statements.

12. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Pending Litigation- Various lawsuits pending against the City invoblaims relating to general liability,
automobile liability, workers' compensation, civights action, and various contractual matters.tha
opinion of the City's management, the outcome ef glending litigation will not have a material acseer
effect on the City's financial position or operago

Arbitrage Rebate Requirement3-he Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposes a rebate reguant with respect to
some bonds issued by the City. Under this requinén@ amount equal to the sum of (a) the excesigeof
aggregate amount earned on all investments ovearttoaint that would have been earned if all investme
were invested at a rate equal to the yield on theb and (b) any income earned on the excess ledan

(a) is required to be rebated to the United Stateasury, in order for the interest on the bondsat@xcluded
from federal taxation. Regulations implementing tiebate requirement were released by the Internal
Revenue Service on May 12, 1989. Rebatable arbitisagomputed as of each installment computatide. da
The last computation date for the City was perfarfa financial information as of August 17, 200¢o
rebate liability was due to the federal governmérformation for the next computation period is dnéay

of 2010. Management does not anticipate therebgith material liability once the computation is pdeted.

Grant Audit- The City receives federal and state grants fociipgurposes that are subject to review and
audit by federal and state agencies. Such audilgl cesult in a request for reimbursement by thikefal and
state agencies for expenditures disallowed undetdims and conditions of the appropriate agencyhé
opinion of City management, such disallowancesany, will not be significant to the City's finankia
statements.

Conduit Debt ObligationsFrom time to time, various legally separate congmbrunits of the City have
issued bonded debt obligations to provide finanasdistance to private-sector entities. The bonese w
issued to acquire and construct industrial and ceromal facilities (Mesquite Industrial Development
Corporation); or to construct medical and healttilifees (Mesquite Health Facilities Corporatiorhe
bonds are secured by the property financed angday@ble solely from payments received on the uwpitherl
debt obligations. Upon repayment of the bonds, oshmp of the acquired capital assets transfershéo t
private-sector entity served by the bond issuaBeen though some of the bonds are outstandingg tkaro
liability to the City or the component unit (no conitment debt), as all liability transfers to thagtee of the
bond issue. A summary of outstanding conduit dglitdmponent unit at September 30, 2009, is asvislio
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Mesquite Industrial Mesquite Health
Development Facilities

Series Corporation Corporation Total

1995 $ 390,000 $ - $ 390,000
1997 1,300,000 - 1,300,000
2000B - 2,460,217 2,460,217
2000C - 6,956,863 6,956,863
2003A 817,882 - 817,882
2003B 600,000 - 600,000
2005 - 19,344,670 19,344,670
2005 - 11,012,906 11,012,906
2005 - 3,585,406 3,585,406
2005 - 1,006,022 1,006,022
Total $ 3,107,882 $ 44,366,084 $ 47,473,966

Contingent Liability for Service AgreemenifFhe City entered into separate agreements witlNthréh Texas
Municipal Water District (the “District”) and Kindgorough Municipal Utility District Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4nd 5 (the
“MUDs") to provide sewer service within the Cityextraterritorial jurisdiction. As a member city tfe
District, the City’s involvement was required tovelop capacity for a wastewater service requirenéit3.1
million gallons per day to service the area. Thstri2t has agreed to construct and operate agrkj@wn as
the Lower East Fork Sewer Interceptor System artdiéd financing on August 24, 2006 in the amount o
$19,190,000. The City’'s share of the debt sergayaments on the project is $105,584 per month 2@grears
and is being passed through to the MUDs. As &idit security for the payments due the City the D4U
agreed to establish, levy, and collect an ad vaidex on all taxable property within the MUDs.

13. DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

The Other Grants Fund deficit fund balance of $8@\ill be eliminated through reimbursements for
projects in the next fiscal year.

14. CORRECTION OF ERROR AND RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

During fiscal year 2009 it was discovered thataiartieveloper contributions from previous yearsewer
actually city paid projects. The transactions werded twice as infrastructure assets; onceigfrthe
developer contribution process and once throughhethelar capital projects process. Procedures begn
put in place to ensure the error does not happaim &gthe future.

The beginning net assets line item in the GovernMéde Statement of Activities, the beginning netets
line item in the Water and Sewer Fund and Draindigjey District Fund Statement of Revenues, Expe)s
and Changes in Fund Net Assets and the beginniad fisset balances in Footnote 5, have been :ftate
this correction.
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The following is a summary of the changes made:

Reporting Area As Reported Adjustment Restated
Government Wide Statement of Activities
Net assets beginning
Governmental Activities $ 185,901,189 $(11,170,312) $ 174,730,877
Business Type Activities 146,043,690 (15,165,225) 130,878,465
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Assets
Total net assets - beginning
Water and Sewer $ 105,552,776 $(13,202,188) $ 92,350,588
Drainage Utility District 26,819,367 (1,963,037) 24,856,330
Footnote 5 - Capital Assets
Governmental Activities
Infrastructure $ 213,223,536 $(11,568,661) $ 201,654,875
Accumulated Depreciaton Infrastructure 109,065,428 (398,349) 108,667,079
Business Type Activities
Infrastructure $ 226,131,837 $(15,759,968) $ 210,371,869
Accumulated Depreciaton Infrastructure 62,513,627 (594,743) 61,918,884
Effect on Change in Net Assets in Fiscal Year 2008
Governmental Activities $ 14,085,812 $ (3,587,003) $ 10,498,809
Business Type Activities
Water and Sewer $ 2,120,071 $ (2,432,869) $ (312,798)
Drainage Utility District 1,592,458 (1,108,673) 483,785
Other (55,757) - (55,757)
$ 3,656,772 $ (3,541,542) $ 115,230

End of Notesto Basic Financial Statements
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Required Supplemental Information (Unaudited)
September 30, 2009

Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS)
Schedule of Funding Progress — Retirement Plan
Last Three Years

UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Annual a Percent
As of Value of Accrued Actuarial Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
12/31 Assets Liability (AAL) Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
2006 $ 158,532,987 $ 225,572,028 $ 67,039,041 70.3% $ 54,796,225 122.3%
2007 $ 165,879,358 $ 278,689,637 $ 112,810,279 595 $ 59,115,956 190.8
2008 $ 172,795,729 $ 290,437,645 $ 117,641,916 595 $ 61,887,949 190.1

Source: Texas Municipal Retirement System Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports.

Notes:
- Trend data presented is based on the fiscal year of the Texas Municipal Retirement System
which ends December 31.
- For years prior to 2007, the actuarial accrued liability was calculated using the Unit Credit
actuarial funding method. For 2007 and forward, the actuarial accrued liability was calculated
using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial funding method.

Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Post EmploymeBenefits (OPEB)

UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Annual a Percent
As of Value of Accrued Actuarial Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
9/30 Assets Liability (AAL)  Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
2008 $ - $ 28,797,834 $ 25,884,426 10.1% $ 42,613,979 60.7%
2009 3 - $ 30,375,813 $ 27,974,545 7.9% $ 55,482,589 50.4%

Source: Actuarial report dated September 30, 2009.

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement 45 in fiscal year 2008; therefore, information prior to
fiscal year 2008 is not available.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds:

Special Revenue funds are a governmental fund type used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are legally or administratively restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.
Individual funds maintained are as follows:

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund - to account for funds received from a tax on the cost of occupancy
in area hotels and motels, the revenues of which may be expended to promote tourism and
the convention and hotel industry.

Confiscated Drug Fund - to account for funds awarded as a result of court forfeitures of
contraband pursuant to Chapter 59 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure. The law
provides for a special fund to be established and to be used solely for law enforcement
purposes.

Other Grants Fund- to account for grant funds received from state and local sources
restricted for the purposes specified in the grant.

Other Special Revenue Funds - to account for other miscellaneous non-major special
revenue activities including 9-1-1 emergency service, court technology, recreation user
programs, cemetery maintenance, and donation accounts.

Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of general
long-term debt principal and interest. The resources for this fund are generated by a tax
levy based upon property values. Payment for principal and interest are made from this
fund for the general obligation bonds, certificates of obligation bonds, and contractual
obligation debt when due through-out the year.

Capital Project funds are used to account for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities ( other than those financed by proprietary funds) being financed from bond proceeds,
charges for services or other revenue sources. There is one non-major capital project fund:

Local Finance Fund - to account for financial resources generated from local revenue
sources to be expended for various capital projects. This fund includes the resources
of the three Tax Increment Financing Districts as well as the Housing Finance, Health
Facilities and Industrial Development Corporations.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Governmental Funds
September 30, 2009

ASSETS:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Intergovernmental
Prepaids
Accrued interest

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Contracts payable

Deposits

Due to other funds

Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Debt retirement
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds
Capital project funds

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Special Revenue

Other

Hotel/Motel  Confiscated Other Special
Tax Drug Grants Revenue
$ 217,025 $ 2,857,631 $ - $ 1,205,064
- - 827,444 -
6,926 - - -
(1,174) 2,123 - 201
$ 222777 $ 2,859,754 $ 827,444 $ 1,205,265
$ 33968 $ 16,388 $ 81592 $ 68,586
- - - 2,850
- 214,623 - 18,365
- - 824,992 -
- - 5,000 -
33,968 231,011 911,584 89,801
- 92,434 275,000 21,357
88,809 2,536,309 (359,140) 1,094,107
100,000 - - -
188,809 2,628,743 (84,140) 1,115,464
$ 222,777 $ 2,859,754 $ 827,444 $ 1,205,265
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Capital Total

Projects Other
Debt Local Governmental
Service Finance Funds

612,164 $ 11,478,169 $ 16,370,053

- - 827,444
- - 6,926
- 524 1,674

612,164 $ 11,478,693 $ 17,206,097

- $ 20,686 $ 221,220

- 17,200 20,050
- 240,820 473,808
- - 824,992
- - 5,000
- 278,706 1,545,070
- 631,951 1,020,742
612,164 - 612,164
- - 3,360,085

- 10,568,036 10,668,036

612,164 11,199,987 15,661,027

612,164 $ 11,478,693 $ 17,206,097




City of Mesquite, Texas

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

REVENUES:
Gross receipts taxes
Sales tax
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Contributions and donations
Other revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current-
General government
Fire services
Police services
Public works
Community development
Library services
Parks and recreation
Housing and community services
Capital outlay
Debt service-
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

Special Revenue

Other
Hotel/Motel Confiscated Other Special
Tax Drug Grants Revenue

$ - $ - $ - $ 75,965

1,093,137 - - -

- - - 1,540

- 732,734 - 70,028

6,355 52,350 - 5,266

- - 701 989,677

- - 1,728,443 -

- - - 81,060

- 105,034 - 20,000

1,099,492 890,118 1,729,144 1,243,536

696,312 - - 149,321

- - 112,814 5,000

- 354,442 160,924 304,581

- - 6,622 -

128,655 - 721,220 -

- - 17,022 4,075

- - 27,280 19,659

150,655 - 339,995 4,566

- - 382,242 -

975,622 354,442 1,768,119 487,202

123,870 535,676 (38,975) 756,334
(158,000) - - (840,000)
(158,000) - - (840,000)
(34,130) 535,676 (38,975) (83,666)

222,939 2,093,067 (45,165) 1,199,130

$ 188,809 $ 2,628,743 $ (84,140) $ 1,115,464
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Capital Total
Projects Other
Debt Local Governmental
Service Finance Funds
$ - % - % 75,965
- - 1,093,137
- - 1,540
- - 802,762
- 169,949 233,920
- 4,823,671 5,814,049
- 56,231 1,784,674
- 8,762 89,822
- 166,877 291,911
- 5,225,490 10,187,780
- 3,641,760 4,487,393
- - 117,814
R - 819,947
- - 6,622
- - 849,875
- - 21,097
- 3,584 50,523
- 688 495,904
- 646,987 1,029,229
7,720,000 402,664 8,122,664
4,154,524 199,134 4,353,658
11,874,524 4,894,817 20,354,726
(11,874,524) 330,673 (10,166,946)
11,949,173 231,605 12,180,778
(12) (3,625,000) (4,623,012)
11,949,161 (3,393,395) 7,557,766
74,637 (3,062,722) (2,609,180)
537,527 14,262,709 18,270,207
$ 612,164 $ 11,199,987 $ 15,661,027
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Hotel/Motel Tax Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

With Comparative Actual Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2008

2009
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget - 2008
Actual Positive Actual
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Amounts
REVENUES:
Sales tax $ 1,144,000 $ 1,127,000 $ 1,093,137 $ (33,863) $ 1,119,038
Investment income 5,000 6,500 6,355 (145) 9,642
Contributions and donations - - - - 21,003
TOTAL REVENUES 1,149,000 1,133,500 1,099,492 (34,008) 1,149,683
EXPENDITURES:
Other-
Administration projects-
Personal services 17,572 46,000 45,550 450 55,966
Supplies - - - - 711
Contractual services 168,000 173,200 190,405 (17,205) 167,242
185,572 219,200 235,955 (16,755) 223,919
Convention and Visitor Bureau
Personal services 199,203 199,730 203,269 (3,539) 103,056
Supplies 20,100 39,062 29,087 9,975 1,511
Contractual services 302,983 268,065 228,001 40,064 307,244
522,286 506,857 460,357 46,500 411,811
Arts Council projects
Contractual services 130,571 126,714 128,655 (1,941) 118,083
130,571 126,714 128,655 (1,941) 118,083
Beautification Commission projects-
Contractual services 22,000 22,000 22,000 - 22,000
22,000 22,000 22,000 - 22,000
Historic Commission projects-
Contractual services 130,571 126,714 128,655 (1,941) 118,083
130,571 126,714 128,655 (1,941) 118,083
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 991,000 1,001,485 975,622 25,863 893,896
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 158,000 132,015 123,870 (8,145) 255,787
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out (115,000) (120,000) (158,000) (38,000) (158,000)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES (115,000) (120,000) (158,000) (38,000) (158,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 43,000 $ 12,015 (34,130) $ (46,145) 97,787
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 222,939 125,152
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 188,809 $ 222,939
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Confiscated Drug Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

With Comparative Actual Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2008

2009
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget - 2008
Actual Positive Actual
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Amounts
REVENUES:
Fines and forfeitures $ 400,000 $ 525,000 $ 732,734 $ 207,734 $ 801,678
Investment income 80,000 86,200 52,350 (33,850) 75,020
Intergovernmental - 7,400 - (7,400) (6,995)
Other revenues 50,000 57,000 105,034 48,034 57,319
TOTAL REVENUES 530,000 675,600 890,118 214,518 927,022
EXPENDITURES:
Police services-
Supplies 138,000 218,895 12,256 206,639 157,919
Contractual services 100,400 171,734 342,186 (170,452) 76,358
Capital outlay 257,150 594,550 - 594,550 307,632
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 495,550 985,179 354,442 630,737 541,909
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 34,450 (309,579) 535,676 845,255 385,113
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 34,450 $ (309,579) 535,676 $ 845,255 385,113
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,093,067 1,707,954
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 2,628,743 $ 2,093,067
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Other Grants Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

With Comparative Actual Totals for the Year Ended For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

2009
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget - 2008
Actual Positive Actual
Original Final Amounts (Neqative) Amounts
REVENUES:
Charges for services $ 400 $ 400 $ 701 % 301 $ 490
Intergovernmental 2,000,870 6,191,839 1,728,443 (4,463,396) 1,548,809
Other revenues - - - - 6,844
TOTAL REVENUES 2,001,270 6,192,239 1,729,144 (4,463,095) 1,556,143
EXPENDITURES:
Current-
Fire services 859,925 1,340,281 112,814 1,227,467 160,369
Police services 110,716 122,448 160,924 (38,476) 204,671
Public works 59,821 60,050 6,622 53,428 98,329
Community Development 970,179 4,310,446 721,220 3,589,226 631,206
Library services - 30,007 17,022 12,985 71,396
Parks and recreation - - 27,280 (27,280) 51,222
Housing and community services - 336,717 339,995 (3,278) 212,385
Capital Outlay - - 382,242 (382,242) 243,803
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,000,641 6,199,949 1,768,119 4,431,830 1,673,381
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 629 (7,710) (38,975) (31,265) (117,238)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 629 $ (7,710) (38,975) $ (31,265) (117,238)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR (45,165) 72,073
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ (84,140) $ (45,165)
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

With Comparative Actual Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2008

2009
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget - 2008
Actual Positive Actual
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Amounts
EXPENDITURES:
Debt service-

Principal $ 7,720,000 $ 7,720,000 $ 7,720,000 $ - $ 7,625,000

Interest and fiscal charges 4,340,456 4,155,687 4,154,524 1,163 3,985,870

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,060,456 11,875,687 11,874,524 1,163 11,610,870
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF EXPENDITURES
OVER (UNDER) REVENUES (12,060,456)  (11,875,687)  (11,874,524) 1,163  (11,610,870)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in 12,073,758 11,917,869 11,949,173 31,304 11,229,758

Transfers out - - (12) (12) -

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

(USES) 12,073,758 11,917,869 11,949,161 31,292 11,229,758

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 13,302 $ 42,182 74,637 $ 32,455 (381,112)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 537,527 918,639
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 612,164 $ 537,527
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Combining Statement of Net Assets

Internal Service Funds
September 30, 2009

With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2008

ASSETS:
Current assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Prepaids and other assets
Accrued interest

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Estimated claims payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Estimated claims payable
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Health General Totals

Claims Liability 2009 2008
$ 2,592,731 $ 1,028,348 $ 3,621,079 $ 3,542,529
200,722 120,000 320,722 610,804
- 2,499 2,499 9,196
2,793,453 1,150,847 3,944,300 4,162,529
600,361 48,916 649,277 702,093
945,000 346,963 1,291,963 1,467,147
1,545,361 395,879 1,941,240 2,169,240
- 693,926 693,926 916,294
- 693,926 693,926 916,294
1,545,361 1,089,805 2,635,166 3,085,534
1,248,092 61,042 1,309,134 1,076,995
$ 1,248,092 $ 61,042 $ 1,309,134 $ 1,076,995
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Internal Service Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2009
With Comparative Totals for September 30, 2008

Operating revenues:
Contributions - City
Medical insurance
Life and dental insurance
General liability
Workers' compensation

Total contributions - City

Contributions - Other
Employees - medical insurance
Retirees - medical insurance
COBRA - medical insurance
Stop loss and other contributions
Other Revenues

Total contributions - other
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Claims incurred
Insurance premiums
Administrative fees

Other Expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues:
Investment income
Total nonoperating revenues

Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

Health General Totals

Claims Liability 2009 2008
$ 8,180,558 $ - $ 8,180,558 $ 8,249,038
1,000,379 - 1,000,379 929,787
- 1,505,000 1,505,000 805,000
- 542,297 542,297 470,606
9,180,937 2,047,297 11,228,234 10,454,431
2,099,912 - 2,099,912 2,101,211
785,430 - 785,430 671,308
19,264 - 19,264 19,532
352,080 - 352,080 178,444
- 131,765 131,765 170,549
3,256,686 131,765 3,388,451 3,141,044
12,437,623 2,179,062 14,616,685 13,595,475
9,602,152 349,721 9,951,873 10,075,412
1,641,508 756,252 2,397,760 2,185,276
964,280 724,029 1,688,309 1,573,551
389,197 3,608 392,805 439,671
12,597,137 1,833,610 14,430,747 14,273,910
(159,514) 345,452 185,938 (678,435)
25,493 20,708 46,201 130,299
25,493 20,708 46,201 130,299
(134,021) 366,160 232,139 (548,136)
1,382,113 (305,118) 1,076,995 1,625,131
$ 1,248,092 $ 61,042 $ 1,309,134 $ 1,076,995
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

With Comparative Actual Totals for the Year ended September 30, 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from City funds
Cash received from other operating sources
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid to claimants
Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received on investments
Net cash provided by investing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN POOLED
CASH AND INVESTMENTS

POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS
AT END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities-

Changes in assets and liabilities-
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in claims payable

Total adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Health General Totals
Claims Liability 2009 2008
$ 9,180,937 $ 2,047,297 $ 11,228,234 $ 10,454,431
3,256,686 131,765 3,388,451 3,141,044
(2,718,384) (1,523,224) (4,241,608) (3,781,991)
(9,666,152) (683,273) (10,349,425) (9,823,744)
53,087 (27,435) 25,652 (10,260)
30,308 22,590 52,898 137,637
30,308 22,590 52,898 137,637
83,395 (4,845) 78,550 127,377
2,509,336 1,033,193 3,542,529 3,415,152
$ 2592731 $ 1,028,348 3,621,079 $ 3,542,529
$  (159,514) $ 345,452 185,938 $  (678,435)
290,082 - 290,082 (13,016)
(13,481) (39,335) (52,816) 111,772
(64,000) (333,552) (397,552) 569,419
212,601 (372,887) (160,286) 668,175
$ 53,087 $ (27,435) 25652 $ (10,260)
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

ASSETS:
Current assets:

Pooled cash and investments
Taxes receivable levied for other government
(net of allowance for uncollectibles)

Total Assets
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable

Due to other governments

Total Liabilities

Agency Fund - Tax Clearing Fund

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,

2008 Additions Deductions 2009
141,176 $ 239,730,137 $ 239,686,257 $ 185,056
4,079,030 98,379,442 98,258,580 4,199,892
4,220,206 $ 338,109,579 $ 337,944,837 $ 4,384,948
141,176 $ 239,730,137 $ 239,686,257 $ 185,056
4,079,030 98,379,442 98,258,580 4,199,892
4,220,206 $ 338,109,579 $ 337,944,837 $ 4,384,948
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Statistical Section (Unaudited)

This part of the City of Mesquite's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 80

These schedules contain trend information to help the readers understand how the city's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 92

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the city's most significant
local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity 97
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
city's current levels of outstanding debt and the city's ability to issue additional debt in the
future.

Demographic and Economic Information 102

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand
the environment within which the city's financial activities take place.

Operating Information 106

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how
the information in the city's financial report relates to the services the city provides and the
activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB 34
in Fiscal Year 2002; schedules presenting government-wide information include information
beginning in that year.

79



City of Mesquite, Texas

Net Assets by Component

Last Eight Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Governmental activities:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net assets

Business-type activities:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net assets

Primary government:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net assets

Fiscal Year

2002 2003 2004
78,839 $ 95,809 105,798
9,719 4,561 7,644
16,284 18,814 17,757
104,842 $ 119,184 131,199
82,804 $ 90,629 99,992
5,296 5,847 6,067
18,051 14,579 12,492
106,151 $ 111,055 118,551
161,643 $ 186,438 205,790
15,015 10,408 13,711
34,335 33,393 30,249
210,993 $ 230,239 249,750

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 34 in fiscal year 2002, thus ten years of data is not available.
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Fiscal Year

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
117,266 128,362 $ 137,669 155,270 149,214
7,774 10,914 19,717 13,775 6,131
18,531 16,147 14,429 16,856 16,157
143,571 155,423 $ 171,815 185,901 171,502
104,206 114,583 $ 122,377 128,354 118,870
6,685 7,124 7,484 4,300 3,386
13,430 15,232 12,526 13,390 12,820
124,321 136,939 $ 142,387 146,044 135,076
221,472 242,945 $ 260,046 283,624 268,084
14,459 18,038 27,201 18,075 9,517
31,961 31,378 26,955 30,246 28,977
267,892 292,361 $ 314,202 331,945 306,578
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Change in Net Assets

Last Eight Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Expenses

Governmental activities:
General government
Fire services
Police services
Field services
Public works
Community development
Housing and community services
Library services
Parks and recreation
Other
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities expenses

Business-type activities:
Water and sewer
Drainage utility
Municipal airport

Total business-type activities expenses

Total primary government expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
Charges for services
Field Services
Community Development
General Government
Other Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total governmental activities program revenues

Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Water and sewer
Drainage utility
Municipal airport
Capital grants and contributions
Total business-type activities program revenues

Total primary government program revenues

Fiscal Year

2002 2003 2004
$ 8,029 $ 8,652 $ 9,783
16,636 17,517 18,805
22,862 23,595 24,982
12,402 12,660 13,449
2,125 2,450 2,752
2,755 2,734 3,133
8,095 10,019 12,098
1,885 2,049 2,080
7,378 7,933 8,834
4,766 6,720 7,228
2,700 2,727 2,617
89,633 97,056 105,761
21,948 24,961 25,604
1,339 1,515 1,606
964 958 1,130
24,251 27,434 28,340
$ 113,884 $ 124,490 $ 134,101
$ 5394 $ 5217 $ 5,447
1,992 7,809 3,924
2,673 2,110 2,945
6,563 5,930 9,467
8,152 10,446 11,852
2,257 2,987 5,943
27,031 34,499 39,578
25,830 27,739 27,761
2,026 2,157 2,078
514 461 673
5,246 5,862 9,413
33,616 36,219 39,925
$ 60647 $ 70,718 $ 79,503

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 34 in fiscal year 2002, thus ten years of data is not available.
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Schedule 2

Fiscal Year
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

$ 18,739 $ 16,796 $ 18562 $ 19,410 $ 19,888

19,636 21,186 22,245 24,670 23,531
26,336 28,156 30,850 32,265 31,767
12,670 6,629 13,424 13,970 13,608
2,974 15,381 3,539 4,529 3,552
3,375 3,302 3,731 3,637 3,510
12,039 11,866 10,883 12,684 14,017
2,052 2,137 2,198 2,127 1,939
8,135 10,538 10,993 9,446 12,940
2,478 3,312 3,740 4,519 4,649

108,434 119,303 120,165 127,257 129,401

26,230 27,468 29,341 31,939 33,431
1,616 1,550 1,736 1,817 1,714
1,297 1,537 1,521 1,721 1,602

29,143 30,555 32,598 35,477 36,747

$ 137,577 $ 149,858 $ 152,763 $ 162,734 $ 166,148

$ 5526 $ 5950 $ 5951 $ 6591 $ 6,992

6,007 4,988 6,314 6,942 5,438
4,270 3,882 5,271 8,177 5,214
8,741 8,803 8,283 6,084 9,429
12,561 12,439 13,351 12,603 12,222
1,693 7,433 7,934 6,977 1,360
38,798 43,495 47,104 47,374 40,655
31,219 32,682 29,833 35,396 35,714
2,098 2,129 2,142 2,143 2,170
814 1,098 1,110 1,317 1,336
4,659 10,532 7,221 6,018 3,110
38,790 46,441 40,306 44,874 42,330

$ 77588 $ 89936 $ 87,410 $ 92,248 $ 82,985

(Continued Next Page)
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Change in Net Assets

Last Eight Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Net (Expenses)/Program Revenues
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total primary government net expenses

General Revenues and Other Changes in

Net Assets
Governmental activities:
Ad valorem taxes

Gross receipts taxes

Sales taxes
Investment income
Sale of capital assets
Transfers

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Investment income
Sale of capital assets
Transfers

Total business-type activities
Total primary government

Change in Net Assets
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total primary government
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Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004

$ (62,602) $ (62,557) $ (66,183)
9,365 8,785 11,585

$ (53,237) $ (53,772) $ (54,598)

$ 26,219 $ 28555 $ 29,946

7,516 7,580 7,137
35,578 35,292 36,136
1,260 791 547
4,437 4,402 4,431
75,010 76,620 78,197
842 520 343
(4,437) (4,402) (4,431)

(3,595) (3,882) (4,088)

$ 71415 $ 72,738 $ 74,109

$ 12,408 $ 14064 $ 12,014
5,770 4,903 7,497

$ 18,178 $ 18,967 $ 19,511




Schedule 2
(Continued)

Fiscal Year
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

$ (69,636) $ (75,808) $ (73,061) $ (79,883) $ (88,746)
9,647 15,886 7,708 9,397 5,583

$ (59,989) $ (59,922) $ (65,353) $ (70,486) $ (83,163)

$ 33073 $ 35505 $ 37,705 $ 40577 $ 40,791

7,416 7,551 7,333 7,677 7,617
35,663 36,880 35,996 35,339 33,348
1,343 3,204 4,397 3,402 1,467
- - 80 2 92
4,514 4,519 3,943 6,971 2,202
82,009 87,659 89,454 93,968 85,517
636 1,251 1,660 1,220 668

- - 23 11 11
(4,514) (4,519) (3,943) (6,971) (2,202)

(3,878) (3,268) (2,260) (5,740) (1,523)

$ 78,131 $ 84391 $ 87,194 $ 88,228 $ 83,994

$ 12373 $ 11851 $ 16,393 $ 14,085 $ (3,229)
5,769 12,618 5,448 3,657 4,060

$ 18,142 $ 24469 $ 21841 $ 17,742 $ 831
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Fund Balances of Governmental funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
General Fund:
Reserved $ 132 $ 618 $ 192 1,848 1,674
Unreserved 12,508 14,061 15,148 14,712 14,840
Total General Fund $ 12640 $ 14,679 $ 15,340 16,560 16,514
All other governmental funds:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances $ 3,125 $ 3,748 $ 5,895 3,342 3,284
Debt service 289 295 327 337 417
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds 4,733 6,476 6,084 5,063 7,071
Capital projects 6,361 8,576 8,871 9,868 17,107
Total of all other governmental funds $ 14,508 $ 19,095 $ 21,177 18,610 27,879
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Fiscal Year
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

732 637 $ 1,286 3,140 1,440
16,644 18,884 16,760 14,223 16,520
17,376 19,521 $ 18,046 17,363 17,960
5,673 4359 $ 25,061 10,011 7,482
531 584 919 538 612
9,148 13,071 14,374 15,257 6,848
23,896 30,225 26,302 28,511 28,200
39,248 48239 $ 66,656 54,317 43,142
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds,

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Contributions and donations
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Fire services
Police services
Field services
Public works
Community development
Housing services
Library services
Parks and recreation
Community services
Other
Capital outlay
Debt service - principal
Debt service - interest

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer in
Transfers out
Capital lease proceeds
Bond proceeds
Notes Payable Proceeds
Proceeds of refunding bonds
Premium on debt
Payment to refunded bond agent

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a percentage
of noncapital expenditures

Fiscal Year

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
$ 63681 $ 68171 $ 69,195 $ 71,352 $ 73,146
1,171 1,475 1,487 1,418 1,347
2,264 2,551 2,524 3,092 3,278
1,834 2,245 1,096 700 492
7,770 9,529 9,590 12,599 12,509
7,865 7,009 8,513 10,589 11,997
179 77 63 119 86
1,609 1,986 1,715 2,462 2,014
86,373 93,043 94,183 102,331 104,869
5,941 6,033 5,927 6,118 6,752
14,780 15,245 16,306 17,200 18,142
20,444 21,352 22,662 23,254 24,245
7,599 7,684 8,738 8,764 9,222
1,909 1,925 1,988 2,268 2,387
2,442 2,637 2,733 2,715 3,193
4,894 5,519 7,194 8,848 11,063
1,717 1,826 1,841 1,982 2,071
7,185 7,257 7,151 7,563 8,612
745 695 837 1,186 974
3,195 3,702 4,190 9,612 7,589
9,258 9,445 10,174 16,240 11,407
8,930 6,568 7,960 7,805 7,830
3,286 4,960 2,734 2,727 2,656
92,325 94,848 100,435 116,282 116,143
(5,952) (1,805) (6,252) (13,951) (11,274)
19,502 18,232 17,571 17,248 16,704
(15,378) (13,491) (13,133) (12,845) (11,933)
- - - - 203
4,065 3,690 4,500 8,480 15,255
- - 6,850 - 14,795
- - (6,793) - (14,805)
8,189 8,431 8,995 12,883 20,219
$ 2237 $ 6,626 $ 2743 $ (1,068) $ 8,945
15.10% 16.07% 13.43% 12.34% 12.48%
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Schedule 4

Fiscal Year
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

$ 76,238 $ 79,822 $ 81,064 $ 83518 $ 81,535

1,249 1,661 1,396 1,294 1,108
2,997 2,929 2,517 3,273 3,401
1,242 3,006 4,255 3,271 1,421
13,212 14,064 15,568 17,126 17,104
14,611 13,491 13,459 12,146 12,229
107 104 185 3,432 297
3,860 1,641 2,716 1,664 1,134

113,516 116,718 121,160 125,724 118,229

6,649 17,958 12,667 14,502 15,032
18,951 20,871 22,172 24,025 23,989
25,647 27,346 30,464 31,453 30,284

8,794 9,240 9,531 10,593 10,136

2,384 2,763 2,589 3,677 2,800

3,278 3,296 3,680 3,616 3,433
10,774 10,345 8,808 10,357 11,587

2,011 2,086 2,176 2,212 1,949

7,542 9,853 10,106 8,831 12,122

1,087 1,650 2,120 2,395 2,401

8,269 - - - -
17,347 12,918 16,327 35,618 20,218

8,350 7,480 7,147 8,012 8,123

2,605 3,056 4,026 4,508 4,645

123,688 128,862 131,813 159,799 146,719

(10,172)  (12,144)  (10,653) _ (34,075) _ (28,490)

18,154 18,655 20,202 24,192 20,575
(13,640)  (14,136)  (15,621)  (16,705)  (15,830)
- - 74 - -
17,550 18,760 22,805 13,566 13,125
- - 135 - -

5,965 - - - 4,245
433 - - - -
(6,059) - - - (4,203)
22,403 23,279 27,595 21,053 17,912

$ 12231 $ 11,135 $ 16,942 $ (13,022) $ (10,578)

11.63% 11.78% 11.47% 10.38% 10.16%
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City of Mesquite, Texas

General Governmental Tax Revenues By Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

(Unaudited)
Year Ended Ad Valorem Sales Taxes
September Total Taxes General Ligquor Hotel/Motel
2000 $ 63,681 $ 23,399 $ 32855 (1) $ 154  $ 881
% Total 100.00 36.7 51.6 0.2 1.4
2001 68,171 24,589 34,993 170 953
% Total 100.00 36.1 51.3 0.2 1.4
2002 69,195 26,101 34,519 172 887
% Total 100.00 37.7 49.9 0.2 1.3
2003 71,352 28,480 34,270 169 853
% Total 100.00 39.9 48.0 0.2 1.2
2004 73,146 29,874 35,075 164 897
% Total 100.00 40.8 48.0 0.2 1.2
2005 76,238 33,159 34,518 174 972
% Total 100.00 435 45.3 0.2 1.3
2006 79,823 35,392 35,631 177 1,072
% Total 100.00 44.3 44.6 0.2 1.3
2007 80,972 37,735 34,616 235 1,145
% Total 100.00 46.6 42.7 0.3 1.4
2008 83,518 40,502 34,032 188 1,119
% Total 100.00 48.5 40.8 0.3 1.3
2009 81,535 40,571 32,063 191 1,093
% Total 100.00 49.8 39.3 0.2 1.3
Notes:

(1) Effective January 2000, the City general sales tax increased one-half of one percent to fund the
operations of the Quality of Life Corporation (4B Sales Tax) Fund.

(2) A settlement was received for prior years' electric and gas gross receipts.
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Schedule 5

Gross Receipts Taxes

Electrical Gas Telephone Cable TV Sanitation Other

$ 3705 % 488 % 896 $ 659 $ 620 $ 24
5.8 0.8 1.4 1.0 1.0 0.0
4,235 1,000 812 742 654 23
6.2 1.5 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.0
4,558 590 827 847 670 24
6.6 0.9 1.2 1.2 1.0 0.0
4,153 868 826 740 683 310 (2
5.8 1.2 1.2 1.0 1.0 0.4
4,057 818 787 753 695 26
55 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.0
4,061 1,104 784 754 692 20
5.3 1.4 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.0
4,170 1,133 780 757 691 20
5.2 1.4 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.0
4,082 1,088 585 770 701 15
5.0 1.3 0.7 0.9 0.9 0.0
4,188 1,185 650 934 697 23
5.0 1.4 0.8 1.1 0.8 0.0
4,022 1,161 606 1,092 706 30
4.9 1.4 0.7 1.3 0.9 0.0
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

(Unaudited)
Assessed and Actual Value of Property (1)

Real Real Real Utilities Total
Fiscal Property Property Property Real and Personal Assessed
Year Residential Commercial Other Personal Property Value
2000 $ 2,718,539 $ 925,798 $ 153,116 $ 91,653 $ 624,917 $ 4,514,023
2001 3,042,793 939,537 159,058 96,716 662,920 4,901,024
2002 3,295,142 1,004,351 155,286 100,687 594,885 5,150,351
2003 3,795,150 1,101,811 146,711 104,321 642,527 5,790,520
2004 3,965,188 1,152,940 148,834 101,967 702,998 6,071,927
2005 4,091,199 1,159,083 141,971 101,599 682,109 6,175,961
2006 4,208,193 1,203,737 147,740 107,156 711,994 6,378,820
2007 4,367,859 1,344,688 154,227 107,582 676,953 6,651,309
2008 4,472,212 1,540,270 182,901 108,586 723,343 7,027,312
2009 4,513,702 1,917,171 221,125 111,020 817,121 7,580,139

Source: Dallas Central Appraisal District for all years shown plus Kaufman Central Appraisal District
beginning in 2009.

Notes:
(1) Assessed value is 100% of estimated actual value for all years as determined by the appraisal
districts. Values are as of January 1 of the calendar year prior to the fiscal year-end date.

(2) Exemptions are granted by the City within the constraints of Texas Constitutional law.

(3) Total taxable valuation here is based on the certified roll and is net of Tax Incentive Financing
Districts (TIF) in the amount of $198,648. The taxable value upon which the tax levy was based,
noted in footnote 3 in the Notes to Basic Financial Statements, includes the TIF value.
Subsequent adjustments to the certified roll reduced the taxable value used for the levy by $733
($6,402,085 + $198,648 - $733 = $6,600,000).

(4) Taxrate is per $100 assessed valuation.
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Schedule 6

Less: Exemptions, Abatements, and TIFs (2)

Tax Incentive Total
Exemptions Tax Financing Total Taxable Tax

Granted Abatements  Districts (TIF) Exemptions  Valuation (3) Rate (4)
$ 212,620 $ 746 $ 19,139 $ 232,505 $ 4,281,518 .54148
382,240 684 27,989 410,913 4,490,111 .54148
325,168 6,635 56,811 388,614 4,761,737 .54148
425,066 9,201 81,160 515,427 5,275,093 .54148
430,846 26,110 91,203 548,159 5,523,768 .54148
435,502 37,838 98,351 571,691 5,604,270  .58148
402,275 24,191 108,179 534,645 5,844,175 .60148
425,235 25,111 146,325 596,671 6,054,638 .62000
486,038 17,724 189,109 692,871 6,334,441 .64000
960,711 18,695 198,648 1,178,054 6,402,085 .64000
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Property Tax Rates —
Direct and Overlapping Governments

(Per $100 Assessed Valuation)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
City of Mesquite Overlapping Rates (1)

Dallas Dallas Dallas Mesquite

County Community County Independent
Fiscal Debt Dallas Hospital College School School
Year General Service Total County District District Equalization  District
2000 .29466 .24682 .54148 196 .196 .05 .005699 1.58
2001 .32717 .21431 .54148 196 .254 .05 .005667 1.58
2002 .35991 .18157 .54148 196 .254 .06 .005525 1.58
2003 .38571 .15577 .54148 196 .254 .06 .0055 1.62
2004 .38833 .15315 .54148 .2039 .254 .0778 .00546 1.67
2005 .42325 .15823 .58148 .2039 .254 .0803 .00546 1.76
2006 .44090 .16058 .60148 2139 .254 .0816 .0053 1.7624
2007 .46246 .15754 .62000 2139 .254 .081 .005034 1.668
2008 .48716 .15284 .64000 2281 .254 .0804 .004714 1.3767
2009 .48727 .15273 .64000 2281 .254 .0894 .004928 1.40

Source: (1) Dallas Central Appraisal District

Notes:

Schedule 7

Total
Direct &
Overlapping
Rates

2.569179

2.627147

2.637005

2.676980

2.752640

2.885140

2.918680

2.841934

2.583914

2.616428

Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property owners
within the city. Not all overlapping rates apply to all city property owners (e.g., the rates for the
Mesquite Independent School District apply only to the proportion of the city's property owners
whose property is located within the Mesquite |.S.D. geographical boundaries.) A small percent
of city property owners are within the boundaries of the Dallas I. S. D. or Garland I. S. D.
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City of Mesquite, Texas Schedule 8
Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
(Unaudited)
2009 2000
Percent of Percent of

Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable

Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Valuation Value Rank Valuation
Town East Mall PS $ 134,118,200 1 2.23% $ 98,262,500 1 2.27%
Oncor Electric Delivery 45,874,020 2 0.76%
Sun Life Asur Co of Canada 41,142,890 3 0.68%
Pepsi Cola 29,303,070 4 0.49% 22,301,720 8 0.52%
Barons Investors Il LP 28,000,000 5 0.46%
Alliance WE LP 27,675,000 6 0.46%
American Multicinema Inc 26,179,650 7 0.43%
CURI Miesquite Prop LP 25,397,240 8 0.42%
Southwestern Bell 24,465,050 9 0.41% 35,549,740 5 0.82%
DDR MDT Marketplace 22,179,790 10 0.37%
Camden Property Trust 20,663,000 9 0.48%
Lucent Technologies - - 78,239,883 2 1.81%
Texas Utilities Services - - 49,017,130 3 1.14%
Market East Associates, Ltd. Inc - - 37,557,390 4 0.87%
EPT Downreit Inc. - - 25,531,710 6 0.59%
Pep Boys - - 24,753,079 7 0.57%
Sears & Roebuck - - 19,996,710 10 0.46%
Total $ 404,334,910 6.71% $ 411,872,862 9.53%

Source: Tax/Accounting Division and Dallas Central Appraisal District
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City of Mesquite, Texas Schedule 9

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Collected within the
Fiscal Year Adjusted Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections Total Collections to Date
Ended Current Percent of  in Subsequent Percent
September 30  Tax Levy Amount Levy Years Amount of Levy

2000 $23,163,476 $23,036,809 9945 % $ 65,870 $23,102,679 99.74 %

2001 24,388,207 24,206,183 99.25 107,846 24,314,029 99.70
2002 25,855,016 25,656,864 99.23 135,431 25,792,295 99.76
2003 28,861,973 27,873,063 96.57 915,013 28,788,076 99.74
2004 30,501,206 29,200,767 95.74 1,202,964 30,403,731 99.68
2005 33,124,683 32,151,536 97.06 855,663 33,007,199 99.65
2006 35,132,527 34,433,390 98.01 495,583 34,928,973 99.42
2007 37,446,166 36,659,819 97.90 603,401 37,263,220 99.51
2008 40,274,065 39,602,124 98.33 372,613 39,974,737 99.26
2009 40,414,901 39,752,647 98.36 - 39,752,647 98.36

Note: Collections do not include penalty and interest on delinquent taxes.
Current year collections for fiscal year 2009 are net of the amount collected for the Tax
Incentive Financing District (TIF) in the amount of $1,141,652.
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City of Mesquite, Texas Schedule 10
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)
Governmental Activities
Public
Property
General Certificates Finance Capital
Fiscal Obligation of Contractual Notes Lease
Year Bonds Obligations  Obligations Payable Obligations Total
2000 $36,388,511 $18,460,000 $ 3,680,000 $ - % - $58,528,511
2001 37,720,000 17,300,000 4,105,000 - - 59,125,000
2002 36,000,000 15,585,000 4,390,000 - - 55,975,000
2003 37,420,000 14,600,000 4,630,000 - - 56,650,000
2004 45,340,000 14,775,000 4,535,000 - 191,215 64,841,215
2005 47,525,000 21,570,000 4,835,000 - 153,545 74,083,545
2006 45,590,000 28,495,000 5,090,000 6,035,453 114,144 85,324,597
2007 41,820,000 47,540,000 5,845,000 5,786,733 141,259 101,132,992
2008 38,320,000 55,250,000 7,610,000 5,349,753 80,424 106,610,177
2009 37,880,000 61,560,000 7,440,000 4,895,392 32,200 111,807,592
Business-Type Activities
Drainage Water/
Water/ Utility Sewer Percentage
Sewer District Capital Total of Effective
Revenue Revenue Lease Primary Buying Per
Bonds Bonds Obligations Total Government Income (1) Capita (1)
2000 $28,655,000 $ 7,695,000 $ - $36,350,000 $ 94,878,511 4.19% 761.94
2001 31,845,000 9,260,000 - 41,105,000 100,230,000 3.96% 791.89
2002 35,040,000 8,745,000 - 43,785,000 99,760,000 3.83% 780.59
2003 40,340,000 11,565,000 - 51,905,000 108,555,000 4.54% 837.29
2004 45,715,000 11,015,000 196,565 56,926,565 121,767,780 5.03% 925.41
2005 47,635,000 10,225,000 157,841 58,017,841 132,101,386 5.29% 988.75
2006 53,225,000 9,405,000 117,338 62,747,338 148,071,935 6.22% 1,089.61
2007 57,945,000 8,565,000 236,159 66,746,159 167,879,151 6.66% 1,227.64
2008 62,795,000 7,710,000 155,645 70,660,645 177,270,822 6.80% 1,288.77
2009 67,435,000 6,825,000 87,420 74,347,420 186,155,012 7.04% 1,350.42

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
(1) See Schedule 15 - Demographic and Economic Statistics for effective buying income and
population data.
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City of Mesquite, Texas Schedule 11
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)
Less: Net

Taxable Amounts Net Percentage General

Assessed General Available General of Taxable Bonded
Fiscal Value Bonded in Debt Bonded Value Debt
Year Population(1) (in 000s) (2) Debt Service Fund Debt of Property  Per Capita
2000 124,523 $ 4,281,518 $58,528,511 $ 289,195 $58,239,316 1.36% 467.70
2001 126,570 4,490,111 59,125,000 295,125 58,829,875 1.31% 464.80
2002 127,800 4,761,737 55,975,000 327,063 55,647,937 1.17% 435.43
2003 129,650 5,275,093 56,650,000 336,646 56,313,354 1.07% 434.35
2004 131,582 5,523,768 64,650,000 416,834 64,233,166 1.16% 488.16
2005 133,605 5,604,270 73,930,000 530,789 73,399,211 1.31% 549.37
2006 135,894 5,844,175 79,175,000 583,706 78,591,294 1.34% 578.33
2007 136,750 6,054,638 95,205,000 918,369 94,286,631 1.56% 689.48
2008 137,550 6,334,441 101,180,000 537,527 100,642,473 1.59% 731.68
2009 137,850 6,025,763 106,880,000 612,164 106,267,836 1.76% 770.89

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Sources:

(1) Population estimate for 2000 is official U. S. Census Bureau count; all other years

are estimates provided by the North Central Texas Council of Governments
(2) Dallas Central Appraisal District
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City of Mesquite, Texas Schedule 12

Direct And Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
September 30, 2009

(Unaudited)
Total Direct and
Outstanding Estimated Estimated
Bonded Percent Overlapping
Taxing Jurisdiction Debt (1) Applicable Bonded Debt
Direct-
City of Mesquite $ 106,880,000 100.00% $ 106,880,000
Overlapping-
Dallas County 175,045,300 4.33 7,579,461
Dallas County Community College District 416,761,225 4.33 18,045,761
Mesquite Independent School District 435,194,708 90.40 393,416,016
Dallas Independent School District 1,800,095,745 0.26 4,680,249
Garland Independent School District 411,965,275 0.04 164,786
Total overlapping 3,239,062,253 423,886,274
Total direct and estimated overlapping bonded debt  $ 3,345,942,253 $ 530,766,274
Ratio, direct and estimated overlapping debt to fiscal 2009 taxable assessed valuation (2) 8.83%
Per capita direct and estimated overlapping bonded debt (3) $3,850
Notes:

(1) Excluding self-supporting debt. Source is most recent Texas Municipal Reports, publication of
the Municipal Advisory Council of Texas

(2) Fiscal 2009 taxable assessed valuation (Net of TIF): $6,402,085,000

(3) Based on 2009 population of 137,850
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City of Mesquite, Texas Schedule 13

Computation of Legal Debt Margin

September 30, 2009
(Unaudited)

As a home rule city, the City of Mesquite is not limited by law in the amount of debt it may issue. The
City's charter (Article 5, Section 2) states:

"The city council shall have the power and is hereby authorized and made its duty to levy,
assess, and collect annually for general purposes authorized by laws and for the purpose
of paying the interest and providing the sinking fund on the bonded indebtness of the City
of Mesquite now in existence or which may hereafter be created an ad valorem tax on real,
personal or mixed property in such amounts and at such rates as shall be determined by

the city council subject to applicable limitations and prohibitions now or hereafter contained
in the Constitution of the State of Texas."

Article 11, Section 5 of the State of Texas Constitution states in part:

"but no tax for any purpose shall ever be lawful for any one year, which shall exceed two
and one-half percent of the taxable property of such city."

The tax rate at September 30, 2009, is $.64000 per $100 of assessed valuation with assessed valuation
being 100% of market value.
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City of Mesquite, Texas Schedule 14

Pledged-Revenue Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Less:
Operating Operating Net Total Debt Average
Year Ended Revenue Expense Available Payments Years Annual Debt
September and Other (1) and Other (2) Revenue Required (3) Remaining Payment Coverage (4)
WATER AND SEWER BONDS
2000 $ 28,375,760 $15,769,697 $12,606,063 $41,335,222 19 $2,175,538 5.8
2001 27,937,940 16,658,800 11,279,140 45,897,895 19 2,415,679 4.7
2002 26,606,963 17,761,766 8,845,197 49,394,233 19 2,599,696 34
2003 28,191,024 20,107,684 8,083,340 56,560,247 19 2,976,855 2.7
2004 28,057,312 20,975,204 7,082,108 63,294,441 20 3,164,722 2.2
2005 31,775,214 21,144,536 10,630,678 69,214,508 20 3,460,725 3.1
2006 33,798,839 21,259,997 12,538,842 73,841,441 20 3,692,072 34
2007 31,363,451 24,220,549 7,142,902 80,115,266 20 4,005,763 1.8
2008 36,536,774 25,384,450 11,152,324 86,091,447 20 4,304,572 2.6
2009 36,344,387 26,806,906 9,537,481 92,010,474 20 4,600,524 2.1
DRAINAGE UTILITY DISTRICT BONDS

2000 $ 2,262,958 $ 427,212 $ 1,835,746 $10,547,524 18 $ 585,974 3.1
2001 2,261,103 477,777 1,783,326 12,887,403 19 678,284 2.6
2002 2,090,833 524,966 1,565,867 11,920,786 18 662,266 24
2003 2,225,070 513,581 1,711,489 15,914,476 18 884,138 1.9
2004 2,124,677 595,083 1,529,594 14,513,632 17 853,743 1.8
2005 2,177,952 592,580 1,685,372 13,297,478 17 782,205 2.0
2006 2,262,875 570,903 1,691,972 12,079,052 16 754,941 2.2
2007 2,294,313 715,195 1,579,118 10,862,710 15 724,181 2.2
2008 2,238,126 760,017 1,478,109 9,656,911 14 689,779 2.1
2009 2,219,139 705,047 1,514,092 8,450,808 13 650,062 2.3

Notes:

(1) Includes operating and nonoperating revenues.

(2) Includes operating and non-operating expenses exclusive of depreciation and interest expense.

(3) Includes principal and interest of revenue bonds only. Principal and interest amounts
represent the amounts payable in subsequent fiscal years.

(4) The Water and Sewer Bond coverage requirement is 1.5 and the Drainage Utility District
Bond coverage requirement is 1.25. The coverage calculation is Net Revenue Available divided

by the Average Annual Debt Payment.
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City of Mesquite, Texas Schedule 15

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Total Effective

Retail Buying

Sales Income (EBI) Median Number School Unemploy-
Fiscal Population (inthousands (inthousands Household of House- Enrollment ment
Year @ of dollars) (2) of dollars) (2) EBI (3) holds (3) 4 Rate (5)
2000 124,523 $2,280,289 $ 2,266,391 $ 48,190 40,700 29,174 2.6%
2001 126,570 2,192,171 2,533,442 51,412 42,300 33,094 4.4%
2002 127,800 2,082,581 2,602,498 50,656 45,115 33,808 5.7%
2003 129,650 2,261,111 2,390,723 51,338 48,210 34,368 5.8%
2004 131,582 2,301,891 2,421,215 52,750 49,051 34,181 5.2%
2005 133,605 2,362,311 2,497,456 50,424 49,559 35,451 5.9%
2006 135,894 N/A 2,380,515 47,446 50,152 35,615 4.5%
2007 136,750 N/A 2,522,392 50,134 50,313 36,002 4.3%
2008 137,550 N/A 2,606,763 51,453 50,663 36,640 5.4%
2009 137,850 N/A 2,643,407 52,131 50,707 37,030 8.2%

Sources: (1) Population estimate for 2000 is official U. S. Census Bureau count; all other years

are estimates provided by the North Central Texas Council of Governments

(2) Sales and Marketing Magazine, Survey Buying Power (Not Available after 2005).
Effective Buying Income for 2006 and later estimated based on median houshold EBI
and number of households

(3) North Central Texas Council of Governments

(4) Mesquite Independent School District

(5) Texas Workforce Commission
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Principal Employers

Current Year
(Unaudited)

Employer
United Parcel Service Inc.

Dallas Regional Medical Center
(Formerly Mesquite Community Hospital)

City of Mesquite

Eastfield College

Walmart Supercenter

Texas Dept of Transportation - Dallas District
Integra Color

Christian Care Center

Macy's (Formerly Foley's)

Dillards

Total

Total Estimated City Employment

2009

Percent of

Total City

Employees Rank Employment
2,670 1 3.62%
1,150 2 1.56%
1,054 3 1.43%
1,006 4 1.36%
481 5 0.65%
425 6 0.58%
383 7 0.52%
338 8 0.46%
310 9 0.42%
250 10 0.34%
8,067 10.93%
73.830 100.00%

Schedule 16

Source: U.S. Census Bureau American Factfinder and North Cental Texas Council of Governments.
Information from nine years ago, not available.
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
By Functions
General government 86.25 84.25 84.25 90.00 85.48
Fire services 186.00 187.00 187.00 187.00 192.00
Police services 272.50 276.50 278.50 279.50 282.50
Field services 120.95 128.95 128.00 125.00 130.00
Public works 23.00 25.50 25.00 24.00 24.00
Community development 40.00 41.85 43.85 45.00 47.00
Housing services 6.75 6.75 8.75 8.75 8.75
Library services 36.57 36.57 35.55 35.55 35.55
Parks and recreation 122.77 123.85 124.85 122.85 122.85
Community services 17.09 20.65 20.40 19.25 20.75
Water and Sewer 89.50 95.57 101.07 101.57 103.57
Drainage utility district 4.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
Municipal airport 7.88 7.88 7.38 7.38 7.38
Total employees by function 1,013.26  1,042.32 1,051.60 1,052.85 1,066.83
By Departments
Administration 8.00 8.00 8.00 10.00 10.00
City Secretary 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
City Attorney 7.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
Human Resources 14.00 15.00 15.00 14.00 14.48
Budget and Research 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Finance 67.25 69.25 69.25 68.50 68.50
Information Technology - - - - -
Fire service 186.00 187.00 187.00 187.00 192.00
Police Service 272.50 276.50 278.50 279.50 282.50
Public Works 222.45 238.02 242.07 244.07 248.07
Housing and community service 23.84 28.40 30.85 30.95 33.45
Community development 40.00 40.85 42.15 42.05 42.05
Parks/ Recreation/Building service 122.77 123.85 124.85 122.85 122.85
Library service 36.57 36.57 35.55 35.55 34.55
Airport service 7.88 7.88 7.38 7.38 7.38
Total employees by department 1,013.26 1,042.32 1,051.60 1,052.85 1,066.83
By Fund
General 903.88 920.47 916.30 916.60 932.58
Grants 8.00 11.40 19.85 20.30 16.30
Water and Sewer 89.50 95.57 101.07 101.57 103.57
Drainage Utility District 4.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
Municipal Airport 7.88 7.88 7.38 7.38 7.38
Total employees by fund 1,013.26 104232 105160 1,052.85 1,066.83

Source: Current and prior year City of Mesquite Annual Operating Budget documents
Note: Information Technology was split out from Finance Department in 2008
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Schedule 17

Fiscal Year
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
85.00 87.00 92.00 100.50 102.00

197.00 197.00 202.50 206.00 206.50
293.50 299.50 299.50 310.50 314.50
130.00 130.00 129.00 130.00 130.00

24.00 24.00 21.00 21.00 22.00
50.00 43.70 44.20 35.70 35.70
9.00 10.00 18.70 22.30 21.30
35.55 34.55 34.55 34.93 34.93
130.09 130.09 130.09 130.09 129.59
20.70 27.00 17.35 29.00 28.00
103.57 102.57 103.57 104.57 104.57
7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
1.38 1.38 .38 .38 1.38

1,092.7 1,099.79 1,106.84 1,138.97 1,143.47

9.00 10.00 11.00 12.00 14.00
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
6.00 6.00 6.00 7.00 7.00
14.00 14.00 14.00 15.00 15.00
2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
68.50 68.50 68.50 55.00 54.50
19.00 19.00

197.00 197.00 202.50 206.00 206.50
293.50 299.50 299.50 310.50 314.50
248.07 247.07 248.07 250.07 251.07

37.00 37.00 36.05 51.30 49.30
42.70 43.70 44.20 35.70 35.70
130.09 130.09 130.09 130.09 129.59
34.55 34.55 34.55 34.93 34.93
1.38 1.38 .38 .38 1.38

1,092.79 1,099.79 1,106.84 1,138.97 1,143.47

955.19 963.19 970.19 997.72  1,002.72

19.65 19.65 18.70 22.30 21.80
103.57 102.57 103.57 104.57 104.57
7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
1.38 1.38 .38 1.38 1.38

1,092.79 1.099.79 1106.84 1,138.97 1,143.47
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Operating Indicators by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Functions
Fire services
Number of calls answered
Inspections
Police services
Reported index crimes
Criminal arrests - index crimes
Criminal arrests - non-index crimes
Traffic citations
Field services
Residential solid waste customers
Annual tons recycled
Work hours per mile of streets and alleys
Public works
Traffic studies conducted
Engineering Information requests
Housing services
Number of HUD allocated unit months
Community development
Residential building permits
Commercial building permits
Environmental code violations
Food inspections conducted
Animals processed by shelter
Library services
Library visits per capita
Registered borrowers per capita
Parks and recreation
Work hours per acre of park land
Athletic program participants
Aquatic program participants
Tennis program participants
Recreation centers programs offered
Community services
Number of health clinic clients
Number of transportation service trips
Number of volunteer hours
Arts center events
Arts center participants
Water and Sewer

Number of gallons of water pumped (000s)

Water main breaks

Miles of sewer mains cleaned
Municipal airport

Number of airplanes fueled

Source: Prior and Current year City of Mesquite Annual Operating Budget
* Information No Longer Available from Department
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Fiscal Year

2000 2001 2002 2003
13,649 13,647 14,390 14,063
3,810 5,317 3,948 4,070
6,152 6,059 6,542 6,480
1,664 1,606 2,105 1,632
3,084 4,922 4,821 3,106
29,714 39,261 35,552 33,261
33,108 34,100 34,491 34,077
21,010 17,771 19,280 19,770
81.83 83.07 82.25 84.24
104 128 145 454
1,212 1,450 949 1,010
9,691 12,250 15,060 15,708
2,015 2,050 2,133 2,192
665 723 750 554
36,106 37,856 35,012 47,593
1,482 1,352 1,239 1,033
9,823 10,714 10,489 10,491
2.62 2.60 2.76 2.90
0.30 0.29 0.31 0.27
30.34 32.34 36.48 37.01
20,517 20,730 19,731 21,535
67,511 58,619 67,380 79,078
7,700 8,000 7,450 7,315
N\A 567 678 764
6,695 7,265 7,128 5,445
36,250 39,223 36,623 35,202
24,544 19,849 19,133 15,517
1,161 1,162 1,174 752
91,805 92,300 93,997 61,732
7,857,950 7,228,597 6,511,114 6,929,350
325 340 325 300
120 151 170 150
5,595 5,021 4,558 3,860



Schedule 18

Fiscal Year
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

10,661 12,945 11,746 11,898 13,156 14,048
2,647 5,841 6,736 6,800 8,811 7,916
6,652 6,582 5,554 6,118 6,120 6,149
1,590 1,561 1,198 1,535 1,492 1,535
3,555 3,400 3,262 3,508 3,294 3,360
42 587 42523 36,372 35,620 36,563 36,810
34,477 34,830 36,000 37,000 37,500 37,900
20,430 20,520 23,678 22,608 29,000 28,500
84.24 73.88 81.85 81.19 80.19 74.43
332 333 346 327 328 190
1,245 995 85,146 75,846 86,603 98,000
15,258 16,308 16,308 16,308 16,308 16,380
2,196 2,053 2,175 1,635 1,394 1,260
601 566 738 294 316 215
32,839 46,980 31,553 67,793 33,488 18,184
1,374 1,193 1,407 998 1,417 1,759
10,164 11,873 13,141 14,474 9,705 8,363
3.11 3.13 3.00 2.65 2.97 2.91
0.28 0.29 0.28 0.40 0.31 0.30
46.12 50.50 52.15 55.02 56.95 58.54
18,325 18,700 13,527 16,276 16,500 16,500
62,432 63,000 82,605 65,000 61,500 61,500
7,525 7,800 7,700 7,964 7,800 7,800
800 803 838 904 824 835
4,845 5,000 5,534 5,624 5,573 6,274
36,900 32,318 39,700 38,130 39,580 40,239
18,274 20,000 30,093 22,324 25,209 45,000
920 717 757 575 611 611

70,267 68,463 104,128 130,229 105,951 92,000

6,223,119 6,500,000 6,800,000 5,641,217 6,521,600 6,346,928

177 170 360 240 190 198
115 155 130 130 130 134
4,299 5,700 5,700 5,700 * *
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City of Mesquite, Texas

Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2000 2001 2002 2003
Functions
Police services
Police vehicles (sedans) 162 163 164 168
Field services
Miles of streets 425 428 428 432
Miles of alleys 210 212 212 213
Number of vehicles in City fleet 592 588 592 601
Parks and recreation
Parks acreage 1,347 1,371 1,373 1,373
Number of parks 62 62 63 63
Water and Sewer
Water system miles 434 437 440 445
Water system connections 47,406 47,822 48,747 48,885
Sewer system miles 377 480 484 488
Sewer system connections 46,261 36,022 36,077 36,311

Source: Current and prior year City of Mesquite Annual Operating Budget documents
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Schedule 19

Fiscal Year

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
166 184 192 196 218 223
432 435 400 440 440 440
213 215 220 220 220 220
600 624 636 651 677 677
1,422 1,422 1,422 1,422 1,422 1,430
66 66 67 67 67 68
448 450 538 566 567 567
49,136 50,313 50,598 51,903 53,109 51,709
491 492 476 492 492 493
36,564 36,756 36,900 50,658 50,658 51,500
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About the Cover: New Mesquite Police Bullding - This new 80,000 square-foot facliity, equipped with the latest In modern
technology and security enhancements, allows for unlified police operations and will serve the future needs of the Police
Department over the next fifty years. The state-of-the-art facility features an expanded 91 1-computer dispatch area,
Emergency Operations Center, and an expanded Jall and Juvenlle detention area designed to meet all federal and state
standards. The new police bullding, 'ocated at 777 North Galloway, will open February 2009.

MESQUITE reng e
T E X A

Mesquite, TX
S 75185-0137
Phone: 972-288-7711
. Texas. Flavor. www.cityofmesquite.com

Rea



	Cover

	Table of Contents
	Introduction
	Financial Section
	MD & A
	Basic Financial Statements
	Notes to Basic Statements
	Combining Statements
	Statistical Section



